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One day, while looking out oT'a vin ovv at Mayapurﬂé‘ﬂkai
His Divine Grace A.C. Bhaktivedanta Prabhupaﬂa

saw a group of children fighting with dogs over scraps of food.
Deeply disturbed by the incident, he resolved to do something to
ensure that no one within the ten-mile radius of the centre would
go hungry. This direction to his followers inspired the birth of The
Akshaya Patra Foundation. It is also the driving force behind all the
milestones the Foundation has achieved.




“ It is a huge and gigantic task to serve 200 crores meals.
It requires not only a huge organisation, infrastructure and
substantial funding system but total commitment to the job. ”

HON'’BLE PRESIDENT OF INDIA
SHRI PRANAB MUKHERJEE
IN HIS SPEECH ON THE 2 BILLION MEALS COMMEMORATION AT AKSHAYA PATRA

AT A
YT HAI
Prime Minister
MESSAGE

I am happy to learn that the Akshaya Patra Foundation will
soon complete fifteen years of serving mid-day meals to
school-children. I am also pleased to note that the
Foundation will soon have served two billion mid-day
meals.

I am sure, these milestones, and the efforts of the
Foundation, will inspire many others to serve our children.

On this occasion, I extend my best wishes to the Akshay
Patra Foundation.

AL

(Narendra Modi)

New Delhi
07 December, 2015
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BN CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

we have grown strength to strength to realise the purpose of transforming lives of children with the power
of ‘awholesome meal. Since inception, our attempt has been to travel the road of ‘crisis to sustainability’
for our nation’s children. We have tried to do so with our expertise in food safety, hygiene, and innovation. We
continuously strive to reach more children and deliver nutritious, wholesome meal every school day. Last year, we
commemorated the milestone of serving of 2 billion meals in the presence of the Honourable President of India,
Shri Pranab Mukherijee.

Reﬂecting on 17 years of Akshaya Patra’s journey, it is with great satisfaction and humility, | recognise how

| truly believe that by providing quality meals to our 1.66 million beneficiaries, across the country, in a sustainable
manner, we are contributing to nation building. We tirelessly endeavour to bring hope of a better future to the
children we serve. It is this wholesome meal that gives children an opportunity to attend school and receive
education. Above all, it gives them a life that can accommodate not only respectable and dignified subsistence but
also the boost required to become conscious and responsible citizens of the country.

For us, feeding a child is not an act of charity, rather it is a social responsibility. Hence, it is important to deliver
quality meals that will provide children with essential nutrition - an imperative in their formative years.

Our aspiration is to continue the Akshaya Patra’s programme in a sustainable manner
by combining good governance and the robust use of innovative technology.

We understand that our proactive efforts are vital for success, and we are determined to drive this relentlessly.

This undertaking is also driven by the partnerships with our stakeholders - our beneficiaries, the Government of
India, the State Governments, corporates, our donors and the community at large.

As you read through this report, you will learn more about our work. You will know, how brick by brick, we
have built our state-of-the-art kitchens across India, how we have strived to be a financially transparent and a
credible organisation, achieved operational efficiency, forged remarkable public-private partnerships with the
Government and the corporates, and observed a robust governance policy — endeavours which have reaped
rewarding returns for our beneficiaries.

1 hope the following pages reflect our willingness and our effort to be responsive to the
needs of children and engage in social innovations to address their immediate needs of
food and education.

Thank you for your continued support to Akshaya Patra, and for sharing our commitment of
‘unlimited food for education’ to the children of India.

Sincerely,

g

Madhu Pandit Dasa
Chairman
The Akshaya Patra Foundation
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B TRUSTEES® OVERVIEW

be able to concentrate on their education, a country where they will not have to choose between food

and education! That is the country we want to live in. It has been 17 years since we took our first step
towards eliminating classroom hunger. Over these years, we have scaled from feeding 1,500 children studying
in 5 schools in Bengaluru to over 1.66 million children across India. We now serve meals to Government and
Government-aided school children in 27 locations. Our endeavour has always been to uplift the society and
our greatest strength has been our stakeholders.

Q country where children will not have to worry about their mid-day meals; a country where children will

Our growth towards the mission of feeding 5 million children by 2020 has been possible only due to support
of all our stakeholders - Government of India, State Governments, corporates, individual donors and well-
wishers, employees, among many - who strive to see that smile of content on a child’s face after a hearty
mid-day meal. Our stakeholders are seminal for the growth of the Foundation; they have made us who we are
today!

Akshaya Patra believes that hunger is a concern that can be resolved if tackled collectively. With every hand
that reaches out in support of children, we reinforce our belief that together we can envision our country
where children have access to unlimited food for education.
KEY HIGHLIGHTS OF FINANCIAL YEAR 2016-17
e Number of mid-day meals served was 2669.14 lakhs
e Number of cumulative meals (Mid-day meals, Anganwadi and others) served was 2,983.24 lakhs
e«  Opened new kitchens at Nagpur, Maharashtra; Ajmer, Rajasthan and Mangalagiri, Andhra Pradesh
e Incomeincreased by 18.31 %

e Our programme-wise break-up cost for this fiscal was 84 % for the feeding programme, 11% for
programme management, and 5% for fund raising and communications

All along our journey, children have been at the core of our initiative and that will continue to be the case. We believe
that together, we can further the cause of ameliorating the society to bring about an
inclusive growth.

On behalf of the Board of Trustees,
T. V. Mohandas Pai
Independent Trustee

The Akshaya Patra Foundation.
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ESSENCE OF AKSHAYA PATRA

No child in India shall be deprived of
education because of hunger

To feed five million children by 2020

We serve the children of
Government and
Government-aided schools
across India

To provide a wholesome and
nutritious meal every school day to
school children, thereby contributing
to eliminate classroom hunger,
promote education, and develop
confident citizens for the nation

Compassion, Integrity, Quality,

Synergy, Trustworthiness and
Devotion to the cause

The Akshaya Patra Foundation started
implementing the Mid-Day Meal Programme in
June 2000. What started with 1,500 children
in five Government schools of Bengaluru,
Karnataka, has now evolved into an efficient
programme with over 1.66 million beneficiaries
across 11 states

Anganwadi feeding

Feeding expecting and lactating mothers
Feeding in special schools

Feeding runaway children

Feeding residents at old-age homes
Feeding the homeless

Disaster relief

After-class tuitions

Life skills programme
Community health camps
Scholarship programmes
Health check-up camps

Akshaya Patra implements the Mid-Day Meal
Scheme in partnership with the Government

of India and various State Governments. The
Government provides grain and cash subsidies
to implement the scheme. In addition, corporate

houses and individual donors extend their generous

support to our cause, thus helping us achieve the
full potential of this programme. A synergy of
various entities coming together for acommon
goal has made our Public-Private Partnership an
honourable relationship

We strive to provide
Unlimited Food for Education
We are dedicated in our effort
To end classroom hunger

We have served 2 billion nutritious meals
We look forward to reaching 5 million dreams




' THE GOVERNMENT AND AKSHAYA PATRA

the State Governments and the local government bodies such as District and Zilla Panchayats for their

continued and valued support in implementing the Mid-Day Meal Programme. Akshaya Patra has been able
to purpose a meaningful and effective implementing arm of the Government’s flagship programme, the Mid-Day
Meal Scheme.

Q kshaya Patra is grateful to the Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD), Government of India,

Reaching and serving across the country has been possible with the help of the Government of India and all the
State Governments. This Public-Private Partnership has acted as the perfect underpinning of the school lunch
programme, enabling it to provide tasty, hygienic and wholesome meals to over 1.66 million children, every school
day.

This operative and resourceful partnership, started in 2003, has proved pivotal to Akshaya Patra’s cause of
providing unlimited food for education to eliminate classroom hunger. Witnessing the impact of the Mid-Day Meal
Programme, the Government along with The Food Corporation of India (FCI) and the Food and Civil Supplies
Corporations have provided timely procurement of food grains. Their support also includes grants and subsidies, in
turn, helping the Foundation ensure sustainability.

The Government of India, through the Ministry of Finance has enabled the Foundation to seek donations under
Section 35A and 80G of the Income Tax Act which has been of immense assistance. The Ministry of Home

Affairs has accorded us the permission to collect overseas donations under the Foreign Contribution Regulation
Act (FCRA), 1976, thereby further ameliorating our resource mobilisation efforts. In the year 2016-2017, the
contribution from the Government for Akshaya Patra’s Mid-Day Meal Programme was ¥18,017.41 lakhs vis-a-vis
the total income of ¥34,975.56 lakhs.

Akshaya Patra is appreciative and responsive to the Government’s efforts to augment the Mid-Day Meal
Programme. To commensurate, the Foundation continues to furnish requisite FCRA returns on time, year after
year. Being a member of the National Steering-cum-Monitoring Committee and Empowered Committee for the
Mid-Day Meal Scheme, Akshaya Patra acts as an advisor. It also provides policy advice to the Government of India
and the State Governments to further develop the Mid-Day Meal Scheme by focusing on areas of programme
implementation, impact assessment, monitoring, and mobilisation of communities, among others.

The Government also conducts other activities with an objective to enhance various initiatives and further
strengthen partnership. This year, MHRD organised various workshops to bring the best NGOs and their best
practices to the notice of the State Governments looking for support under different foci of social welfare
programmes in education. The workshops gave fillip to various programmes initiated by the Government of India.
The workshops with participation from all levels of school education department including secretaries, directors,
and other government officials provided an opportunity to obtain thoughts and perceptions of administrators and
educators on successes and challenges in school education. The workshops aided in identifying the objectives, core
focus areas, and potential services to be targeted under the education sector. Akshaya Patra welcomes more such
activities which will help enrich our cause.

Akshaya Patra expresses its gratitude to the Government of India and the State Governments of Karnataka,
Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan, Odisha, Gujarat, Andhra Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, Assam, Telangana and Maharashtra
for their dedicated support throughout its journey. Akshaya Patra looks forward to the Governments’ continued
benefaction, and hopes to further secure the partnership in making a positive impact on the lives of many more
children across the country.
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W PREPARATION OF A MILLION SMILES

kshaya Patra, along with the Government of India is
Aact'vey implementing the Mid-Day Meal Scheme,
in a continuous effort to end classroom hunger.
As aresponsive organisation, Akshaya Patra, with the
help of an efficient Food Safety Management System
(FSMS), ensures that the quality of food delivered from
their kitchens is of high standard. The entire supply chain
management adheres to the norms set by the FSMS to
maintain the quality of food.

FSMS is implemented in each facet of the supply chain
management - right from selection of vendors to the
cooking process to the delivery of meals. Supplier
Quality Management System (SQMS) is implemented
to ensure the quality of the suppliers is on par with the
set standards, and only those suppliers are partnered
with. These standards set by Akshaya Patra have

been the backbone for a strong quality base for the
kitchen operations, initiating the society into setting
predetermined standards for food quality and nutrition
therewith.

Some of the parameters set include First Expiry First
Out (FEFO) and First In First Out (FIFO) methods while
issuing raw materials to the production, which ensures
all perishable items are used efficiently. Raw material is
inspected as per Food Safety and Standards Authority of
India (FSSAI) standards and only materials thus accepted
are stocked in centralised storerooms.

Production follows all the sterilization and sanitization
techniques to ensure safety and hygiene. All Akshaya
Patra kitchens are 5S (Sort, Straighten, Shine, Standardise
and Sustain) and Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)
compliant. Toolkits are set in place at all kitchen locations
to ensure that the Food Safety Management System is
complied with and hygiene is maintained. All employees
are trained in GHP - Good Hygiene Practices. Recipes are
standardised, which forms an important aspect of Akshaya
Patra kitchens to maintain quality of nutrition provided
and taste of the food served. Quality programmes are
implemented at all three stages of operation - Pre-
production, Production and Post-production.

|kshaya Patra employs two
kitchen models — centralised
kitchens in urban locales and
decentralised kitchens in rural and
difficult terrains.

One of the unique aspects of Akshaya Patra
kitchens, which are at 27 different locations, is
that the recipes change according to the local
palate. For example: Roti (flat bread) and Sabji (a
dish prepared with vegetables) form part of the
meal in the North while Rice and Sambhar (lentil-
based vegetable stew) are served in South India.

The Foundation currently operates 26 centralised
kitchens and 2 decentralised kitchens. The
decentralised kitchens are managed by women's
self-help groups (SHGs) and are overseen by
Akshaya Patra employees. This also creates more
opportunities for womenfolk while promoting
gender parity.

The cooked food is delivered by custom built
delivery vehicles, to ensure the food is hot and
fresh at the point of delivery. The vehicles used
are heat insulated, dust free and can deliver up

to 1,50,000 meals in just a few hours. Route
optimisation tools have also been developed to
improve efficiency. Besides enabling GPS tracking
technology, the Foundation has also initiated
several innovations in logistics operations.
Akshaya Patra also ensures optimum utilisation of
resources by undertaking improvement strategies
like Kaizen and Continual Improvement Process
(CIP). Six Sigma methodologies have been adopted
in the kitchen processes which has led to improved
quality and optimised costs. These have also
directed a reduction in the cooking time by 20%.

Thirteen Akshaya Patra kitchens are I1SO certified;
with millions of children to feed every day, the
Foundation is conscious of the need to provide
safe, nutritious and hygienic meals to children.

Akshaya Patra continuously evolves to include
innovative elements crucial for growth. Scalability
and increased productivity at the Foundationis
aided by IT inits operations. Enterprise Resource
Planning (ERP) systems to connect all locations
on asingle platform on a real-time basis on
Procurement to Production, Supply Chain, School
Enrolments, Complete Financial Transactions, and
Costing modules; have streamlined processes to
give optimum results.

The use of internet technology through various
online platforms including social media has
brought awareness about the Foundation’s
cause. Ensured sustainability and optimum
utilisation of the resources are vital for reaching
the Foundation’s aspiration of feeding five million
children by 2020.
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To make a difference is an effort

Fire, Water, Sinew and Steel

All to make one hot meal

And when bellyful children smile back
We are ready to do it again, every day




I ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW

Akshaya Patra’s journey began
in 2000 with the feeding of 1,500
children from five Government
schools in Bengaluru, Karnataka.
The initiative is undertaken to

realise the vision - ‘no child in India

shall be deprived of education
because of hunger.

schools run or aided by the Government when the Supreme Court of

India passed an interim order on the Mid-Day Meal Scheme (MDMS),
and directed the Governments of all States and Union Territories to
implement it. The Akshaya Patra Foundation, in 2003, became the first
organisation to forge a Public-Private Partnership with the Government
to implement the Mid-Day Meal Scheme after it signed an MoU with the
Government of Karnataka for Akshara Dasoha.

I n 2001, a cooked mid-day meal became a right for children studying in

To fulfill the dream, committed and like-minded individuals embarked
on this journey under the leadership of Madhu Pandit Dasa. The

first delivery vehicle was donated by Mohandas Pai while Abhay

Jain promised to bring in more donors. Soon, they realised that the
initiative had a two-fold success - it served as an incentive for children
to come to school and also helped them concentrate on their studies.
Becoming a beacon of change in the society, the Foundation set forth
its operations, and has been an example of good governance, prudent
financial reporting and an admirable Public-Private Partnership, in turn,
contributing to nation building. Everyone involved with the cause has
always been conscious of the huge responsibility that lay with every step
taken. Akshaya Patra has always pursued financial transparency in the
sector. In 2008, the Foundation became the first NGO to adhere to the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

In 2013, the organisation entered the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India’s (ICAI) Hall of Fame after receiving the Institute’s Gold Shield
Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fifth consecutive year.
As a responsive organisation, by means of feeding millions of children,
Akshaya Patra aims to contribute in nation building and also to achieve
the two most critical UN Sustainable Development Goals: Zero Hunger
and Quality Education.

The 17-year-journey has been quite
eventful. The Foundation serves mid-

day meal to 1.66 million childrenin
13,549 schools across 11 states. In order
to feed millions of children, Akshaya

Patra depends onits centralised and
decentralised kitchen units; centralised
kitchens — courtesy the latest technology
— can prepare up to 100,000 meals in few
hours.

Akshaya Patra opened three new kitchens
at Nagpur, Maharashtra; at Mangalagiri,
Andhra Pradesh and Ajmer, Rajasthan. The
Foundation now caters to 27 locations
with 26 centralised and 2 decentralised
kitchens. Akshaya Patra’s first
decentralised kitchen was started in April
2005 in Baran, Rajasthan when it was
realised that the terrain made it difficult
for a centralised kitchen to operate
efficiently. Women'’s self-help groups
were appointed to run small kitchens

thus promoting women empowerment
and gender parity. Each of these kitchens
served one or two schools and was
monitored by the organisation. The same
system was also introduced in Nayagarh,
Qdisha, in March 2007.

Akshaya Patra commemorated the serving
of 2 billion cumulative meals in the august
presence of the President of India, Shri
Pranab Mukherjee. A precursor to the
mission to reach five million children by
2020, the Foundation adheres to the
belief of continuous improvement and
going that extra mile to bring smiles on
children’s faces.

ILLUMINE 12



N ORGANISATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

RAJASTHAN

JAIPUR

February 2004
1,22,594 Children
1,760 Schools

BARAN*

April 2005

11,594 Children
1105¢h00lS e .
NATHDWARA

June 2006

28,009 Children

412 Schools

JODHPUR
August 2013
13,488 Children
140 Schools

September 2016
16,233 Children
192 Schools

GUJARAT

AHMEDABAD
June 2007
1,22,057 Children
523 Schools

VADODARA
November 2009
1,15,251 Children
620 Schools

June 2012
1,50,333 Children
336 Schools

MAHARASHTRA

NAGPUR
August 2016
5,720 Children
46 Schools

TAMIL NADU

CHENNAI

July 2011

731 Children

1 School (Private)

UTTAR PRADESH

VRINDAVAN
August 2004
1,42,600 Children
2,112 Schools

LUCKNOW
March 2015
90,956 Children
1,008 Schools

CHHATTISGARH

BHILAI
January 2009
29,088 Children

ODISHA

PURI

June 2006
46,425 Children
654 Schools

NAYAGARH*
March 2007
24,074 Children
270 Schools

ROURKELA
November 2013
49,733 Children
417 Schools

BHUBANESHWAR
July 2014
55,174 Children

GUWAHATI
February 2010
47,249 Children
606 Schools

TELANGANA

HYDERABAD
October 2008
62,020 Children
463 Schools

ANDHRA PRADESH

VISAKHAPATNAM
October 2008
21,603 Children
925chools .
KAKINADA

December 2015

13,583 Children

80Schodls ... .
MANGALAGIRI

June 2016

16,068 Children

182 Schools

KARNATAKA

BENGALURU H.K. HILL
June 2000

95,252 Children
6735ch00lS s
BENGALURU VK. HILL
July 2007
96,115 Childr
578schools” F .
HUBBALLI ¢

July 2004

1,29,308 Children
807Schools © . .
MANGALURU -« ¢
December 2004

16,047 Children ¢

138 Schools

MYSURU
August 2004
23,450 Children
164 Schools

BALLARI

July 2006
1,17,490 Children
577 Schools
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INOUR IDENTITY

The Akshaya Patra Foundation is registered as a
not-for-profit organisation under the Indian Trusts
Act, 1882 (Reg. No. 154). The Trust deed will be
made available on request.

The Akshaya Patra Foundation is registered under
Section 12A (a) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Akshaya Patra Foundation is registered under
Section 6 (1) (a) of the Foreign Contribution
(Regulation) Act, 2010 (FCRA Reg. No. 094421037)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE MAIN BANKERS

Axis Bank

No.10/116, 1st block, Dr. Raj Kumar Road, Rajajinagar,
Bengaluru- 560010

Yes Bank

Flat No. 95, 2nd Main, Sampige Main Road, 7th Cross,
Malleshwaram, Bengaluru - 560003

Kotak Mahindra Bank

Corporation Ward No. 5, 18th Cross, West Park Road,
Malleshwaram, Bengaluru, - 560003

NAME AND ADDRESS OF AUDITORS

IGAAP Financials: M/s BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants

IFRS Financials: KPMG
Maruthi Info-Tech Centre, 11-12/1, Inner Main
Road, Koramangala, Bengaluru - 560071
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BN ABRIDGED FINANCIALS

GOVERNMENT SUBSIDY GROWTH (% IN LAKHS)

ABRIDGED INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT (% IN LAKHS ) 18,017.41
16,525.97
2016-17 2015-16
14,774.69
TOTAL INCOME 34,975.56 29563.39
12,495.22
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 33,515.48 27,880.74
10,365.65
EXCESS OF INCOME OVER EXPENDITURE 1,460.08 1,682.65
ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET (% IN LAKHS)

2016-17 2015-16
FIXED ASSETS 11,268.83 9,482.83
NET NON CURRENT ASSETS 3,424.46 5813.24

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
NET CURRENT ASSETS 17,404.27 10,143.04
Source: Income and Expenditure Account
TOTAL ASSETS 32,097.56 25439.11
TRUST FUNDS, DESIGNATED FUNDS AND
EXCESS OF INCOME OVER EXPENDITURE 32,097.56 25439.11
DONATIONS RECEIVED (% IN LAKHS )

21,527.61

COMPARATIVE NUMBER OF MEALS ( IN LAKHS) e
2,983.24
2,900.14 g
2,754.89 14,703.40
2,626.52
2,476.62
10,680.26
7,470.62 I

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
Source : Receipts and Payments Account
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YEAR WISE % COST BREAKUP

B Programme Management Cost
M Fund Raising Cost

B Programme Cost

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Source: Income and Expenditure account

ASSET VALUE (Z IN LAKHS)

27,636.02
22,937.18
20,209.94
16,707.66
13,674.00 I
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Source : Balance Sheet
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I GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY.
Governance Model ﬁ

GHILDREN IN Scho o,

s‘thEGY AND DIRECT;q,,

. union Government Direcﬁnns
- sta‘lerneﬂtﬁ of nbjectives

A Dpe;aﬁon capability piap,
, mesource allocatigp,

. Strategic Dlanning

thought-out Governance Policy is the key to an

organisation’s success. Adherence to it helps the
organisation perform efficiently and ethically, while
creating value for its stakeholders.

The Akshaya Patra Foundation believes that a well-

Akshaya Patra strives for excellence through adoption
of laws, regulations, and best practices. We believe that

transparency, in the context of financials and operations in TRUSTEES &
particular, adds to the accountability of our initiative and e oty
the organisation as a whole. EXEGUTIVE

MANAGEMENT

Our governance practices also reflect the culture of
trusteeship which is an important component of our value
system.

* Codes of conduct

BASIC TENETS :
* Accountability ﬁame’“

A L aind
Board accountability to the National committee r°° &
Foundation and stakeholders " Food safety management S &
“ 4g o
herence to Governme™ &

Equitable treatment to all stakeholders "eQulatory ¢ "
ramewo

Strategic guidance and effective
monitoring by the Board

\\g
PUBLIC.pRiyarE PARTNERS"

Transparency and timely disclosure
4,
04'@59
4[“'&-' = e
(> VIaTIoN For ENABM™
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M BOARD OF TRUSTEES

| Madhu Pandit Dasa

Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Madhu Pandit Dasa completed his B. Tech in Civil Engineering from [IT Mumbai. It was
at 1T Mumbai while pursuing his M. Tech, that he came across the teachings of Srila
Prabhupada, the Founder- Acharya of ISKCON. In 1981, he became a full-time member
of ISKCON. Inspired by Srila Prabhupada’s message, he initiated the Akshaya Patra
Programme to provide mid-day meals to children studying in five government schools in
Bengaluru. Madhu Pandit Dasa designed Akshaya Patra’s first centralised kitchen unit.
Currently, he is involved in devising strategy for innovative new models, governance,
visionary guidance and in envisioning the path the programme implementation takes..

e0ccccccccccccce eecccccccccccccccce eeccccccccccccccoe eecccccccccccccccce eeccccccce

Chanchalapathi Dasa

Vice-Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Chanchalapathi Dasa, while pursuing his Bachelor’s Degree in PSG College of
Technology, Coimbatore, came in touch with ISKCON and Srila Prabhupada’s
message and mission. Later, he joined the Indian Institute of Science, Bengaluru
to pursue his Masters in Electrical Communication Engineering. He became

a full-time member of ISKCON in 1984. He is currently involved in strategy,
growth, and governance of Akshaya Patra.

©00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Ratnangada Govinda Dasa
Trustee, The Akshaya Patra Foundation

©0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa
Trustee, The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa joined The Akshaya Patra Foundation in 2005, and
since has handled kitchen projects in Northern and Western parts of India. He
serves as the President of Akshaya Patra, Gujarat region. He has a Bachelor’s
Degree in Electronics and Communication Engineering. He has a keen eye

for design and innovation, which along with his ability to stay up-to-date

with the events of the food technology industry, makes him an asset for the
organisation. Amongst other things, he has to his credit, the honour of having
implemented practices to boost Akshaya Patra’s Mid-Day Meal Programme.

ecceccccccce eecccccccccc000c00000000 0 eecccccccccce ©eccc0ccc0ccc00cc000c00e

Ratnangada Govinda Dasa’s association with Akshaya Patra began when he was assigned the
responsibility of building the organisation’s kitchen in Hubballi, Karnataka, in 2004. It was
during his post-graduation that he came across Srila Prabhupada’s teachings, and inspired

by them, decided to become a full-time member of ISKCON. He played a pivotal role in
implementation of Akshaya Patra’s Mid-Day Meal Programme in Rajasthan. Especially, in the
rural district of Baran, he initiated the decentralised kitchen system, which is considered to be
a highly successful case of social intervention for the benefit of the society.

®0000000000000000000000000000000000 00
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T.V. Mohandas Pai

Chairman, Manipal Global Education Services P LTD

Mohandas Pai has been involved with The Akshaya Patra Foundation since its
inception. While he is a renowned angel investor now, he has previously served as the
Chief Financial Officer and Member of the Board of Directors of Infosys. His areas of
focus include education, information technology and human resource development. In
2015, he was voted the ‘Number One Angel Investor in India, an addition to his already
impressive list of accolades, which also includes being voted the ‘Chief Financial Officer
of the Year’ in 2002 and ‘Best Chief Financial Officer in India’ in 2004.

©00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Abhay Jain
Advisor-Group Corporate Affairs
Manipal Education & Medical Group

Abhay Jain has been involved with The Akshaya Patra Foundation since its inception.
He has a Bachelor’s degree in Science and General Law and a Post-graduate Diploma in
Management. He is one of the largest distributors for polymers in South India. He has
also served as a member of the governing body of the Indian Institute of Management,
Bangalore, from 2004 to 2009. Networking is his forte, and he has used it effectively to
promote social development.
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V. Balakrishnan

Founder & Chairman, Exfinity Venture Partners;
Chairman, Tejas Networks Ltd.

V. Balakrishnan has been associated with The Akshaya Patra Foundation as a trustee
since 2006. His expertise on topics like Corporate Finance, International Taxation, Risk
Management, and Mergers & Acquisitions makes him a stalwart of the finance domain.
He has held sveral positions in Infosys, including that of Chief Financial Officer and
Member of the Board of Infosys. He has been honoured with the Best CFO Award by
CNBC and Finance Asia. At Akshaya Patra, he also serves as the Chairman of the audit
committee.
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Raj P. Kondur

CEO, Plank Labs

Raj Kondur has been actively involved with several non-profit organisations in India. His
association with Akshaya Patra as a Trustee dates back to April 2002. He also serves as
the member of Akshaya Patra’s Audit Committee. A Harvard Business School graduate,
he previously worked with Morgan Stanley and AT. Kearney in the USA. Raj co-founded
and was the Managing Director of ChrysCapital, India’s first, largest, and most successful
independent private equity fund with over US$ 3 billion under management. In his
current role, he leads the growth of Plank Labs’ holdings including Plank Energy (energy
storage), Plank Media (TV and digital media), and Plank Sky (commercial drones)

©000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 .

The Trust Deed of The Akshaya Patra Foundation clause 7 (iv) states that the normal tenure of the co-opted trustees shall be 3
years, they being eligible for re-appointment. As per this, the tenure of the co-opted trustees will be until 12 February 2018.
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W BOARD OF ADVISORS

Rajendra Babu S

Chairman - Advisory Board,
The Akshaya Patra Foundation,
Former Chief Justice of India
Former Chairperson of NHRC,
Chair Professor - NLSIU

Sangita Jindal

Chairperson,
JSW Foundation

«! Dr. Devi Shetty

Chairman and Executive Director,

. Narayana Health

-

L

Co-Founder,
Janaagraha

Ravindra Chamaria
Vice - Chairman - Advisory Board,
The Akshaya Patra Foundation,

Chairman & Managing Director,
Infinity Infotech Parks Ltd.

Rajendra J Hinduja

Former Managing Director
Gokaldas Exports Ltd.

Shannu Kaw

Director - Operations,
Cisco Systems

Ramesh Ramanathan
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (USA)

Gururaj “Desh” Deshpande
Board Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, USA

Madhu Pandit Dasa
Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, India

Chanchalapathi Dasa
Vice-Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, India

Prabhakar “PK” Kalavacherla
Partner, KPMG USA

B.V. Jagadeesh
Managing Partner, KAAJ Ventures

Vandana Tilak
Director, Almex USA, Inc

ADVISORY BOARD (US: \

Deepak Chopra
Founder, The Chopra Center for Wellbeing

N. R. Narayana Murthy
Founder, Infosys

Nitin Nohria
Dean, Harvard Business School

Satya Tiwari
President, Surya, Inc.

Fareed Zakaria
Author, Journalist, and Host of CNN'’s “GPS”

Vandana Tilak
Director, Almex USA, Inc

Emily Rosenbaum
CEQ, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, USA

Address:

The Akshaya Patra Foundation, USA

92 Montvale Avenue, Suite 2500, Stoneham
MA 02180 - USA

Office: +1-781-438-3090 Ext. 1

Fax: 781-481-9155

Email: contact@apusa.org

BOARD OF TRUSTEES (U.K.)

Ravindra Chamaria

Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, UK
Vice - Chairman - Advisory Board,

The Akshaya Patra Foundation, India
Chairman and Managing Director,

Infinity Infotech Parks Ltd.

Chanchalapathi Dasa
Vice-Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, India

Abhishek Khaitan
Partner, Bower Cotton Solicitors

Peter Marano
Founder and Chairman, Broadgate West Ltd.

ADVISORY BOARD (U. k )

Nirmal Banthia
Managing Director, Memo Group

Prashant Jhawar
Vice-Chairman, Usha Martin Ltd.

Mihir Kapadia
CEQ, Sun Global Investments

Wayne McArdle
Senior Partner, Gibson, Dunn &Crutcher LLP

Yogesh Mehta
Group Managing Director, TEAM Group

Kris Murali
Group Director of Finance & Resources, Sense

Sanjay Sharma
Managing Director, Interiors With Art

Nitin Singhal
Partner, Fresco Global

Bhawani Singh Shekhawat
CEQ, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, UK

Address:

The Akshaya Patra Foundation, UK
1 Snowden street

London, EC2A 2DQ

UK Charity No: 1117756

Phone: +44-20-7422-6612
Email: info@akshayapatra.co.uk
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OUR ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

Our organisation structure enables us to effectively implement our

p/'()g'/”(l/fl/fl(?.
BOARD OF TRUSTEES ADVISORY BOARD
AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHAIRMAN
VICE - CHAIRMAN
CEO PRESIDENTS

(Missionary Volunteers)

OPERATIONS QUALITY ASSURANCE | PROJECTS & INFRASTRUCTURE
RESOURCE MOBILISATION  COMMUNICATIONS | DONOR CARE
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS  HUMAN RESOURCES ADVOCACY
IINFORMATION TECHNOLOGY | ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
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B OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Change Makers

Our stakeholders include our beneficiaries, parents,
teachers, governments, individuals and corporate
donors, our employees, and several volunteers

who have collaborated to create a strong system
that enables us in serving children tirelessly, thus
providing them an incentive to come to school. These
stakeholders contribute towards the growth and
development of children and in doing so, upholds
their right to food and education, and encourages

them to pursue their dreams.

People have the potential to bring about a change. Their understanding of various issues that concern
our society helps them take responsibilities, and contribute to bring about a better change. They invest in
creating a platform for people from all walks of life to participate. We call them the Change Makers.

At The Akshaya Patra Foundation, we have had the privilege to meet several Change Makers over the
course of our journey. It is the continued dedication, care, and contribution of these Change Makers that

has empowered us in our endeavour to end classroom hunger.

We thank all the policy and grant makers, benevolent donors, strategic partners, and well-wishers for their

continued support and encouragement. Their efforts have given children the confidence to dream.

Policy and Grant Makers

o Government of India
o Government of Karnata

ka

o Government of Uttar Pradesh
o Government of Rajasthan

Government of Odisha
Government of Gujarat

Government of Andhra
Government of Assam

Jaipur Nagar Nigam

L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L] L]

Government of Chhattisgarh

Pradesh

Government of Telangana
Government of Maharashtra
Bruhat Bengaluru Mahanagara Palike (BBMP)

Brihanmumbai Municipal Corporation (BMC)

Reach for the sky, jump for the moon
As much your hearts desire
Oh child! You can achieve anything

And, we promise, we shall be there
To hold, guide and see through
Till you are someone we look up to...



| CORPORATES & PSUs
dlL . .
AU FINANCIERS INDIA PVTLTD
| AGRICULTURE INSURANCE COMPANY OF INDIALTD
2. ARI GLOBAL SOFTWARE PVT LTD
CONTINUUM INDIA PVT LTD
r BALKRISHNA‘INDUSTRIES LTD
BANK OF BAHRAIN & KUWAITB'S C
BHARAT DYNAMICS LTD
. BHEL GE GAS TURBINE SERVICES PVT LTD
. BOSCHLTD
BSS MICROFINANCE PVT LTD
. CENTUMRAKON INDIA PVT LTD
CENTURYLINK TECHNOLOGIES INDIA PVT LTD
CISCO SYSTEMS CAPITAL INDIA PVT LTD (CSCIPL)
| CISCO SYSTEMS INDIA PVT LTD (CSIPL)
CITIBANK NA.
- DEUTSCHE BANKAG
DEWAN HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LTD
" DHANUKA AGRITECH LTD
DHL EXPRESS INDIA PVT LTD
! DIVIS LABORATORIES LTD
" DIYA SYSTEMS MANGALORE PVT LTD
DSPMERRILL LYNCH CAPITAL LTD

——

EXIDE LIFE INSURANCE CO LTD

EYGBS INDIA PVTLTD !
FACEBOOK INDIA ONLINE SERVICES PVT LTD
. FANUCINDIAPVTLTD

FR NKLIN TEMPLETON ASSET MANAGEMENT INDIA PVT LTD
KLIN TEMPLETON INTERNATIONAL SERVICES INDIA PVT LTD

. FR

GALAXY DIAMONDS & GEMS
t - AL INSURANCE CORPOI&ATION OF INDIA
g 0 G‘EP P SOLUTIONSPVTLTD L
__@LAxos ITHKLIN CONSUMER HEALTHCARE LTD
ELEﬁAwmm SEEGDy Qs LI

OLEUM CORPORATION LTD
HITACHI CONSULTING SOFTWARE INDIA PVT LTD

HSBC ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING INDIA PVT LTD

EMERSON INDUSTRIAL AUTOMATION ELECTRIC POWER GENERATION PVT LTD

cCO< RZPI—
E}HHFMF] . _

HUAWEI TELECOMMUNICATION INDIA CO PVT LTD
IDEA CELLULARLTD

INDIAIDEAS COM LTD

INDIAN ENERGY EXCHANGE LTD

INDITEX TRENT RETAIL INDIA PVT LTD
INGERSOLL RAND INDIA LTD

JSWSTEELLTD

JINDAL NATURECARE LTD

L& TINFOCITY LTD

LIFE STYLE INTERNATIONAL PVT LTD

LINTAS INDIAPVT LTD

MAHYCO MONSANTO BIOTECH INDIALTD
MISHRA DHATU NIGAM LTD

MONSANTO INDIALTD

MORGAN STANLEY INDIA COMPANY PVT LTD

MS LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LTD

MTR FOODS PVT LTD

NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY LTD
NATIONAL MINERAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD
NETAPP INDIA PVT LTD

NOMURA FIXED INCOME SECURITIES PVT LTD
NOVARTIS INDIALTD

RAYMOND UCO DENIM PVT LTD

SBI CAPITAL MARKETS LTD

SBI'FUNDS MANAGEMENT PVT LTD

SBICARDS & PAYMENT SERVICES PVT LTD
SHANKARANARAYANA CONSTRUCTIONS PVT LTD
STEEL AUTHORITY OF INDIALTD - BHILAI

STEEL AUTHORITY OF INDIA LTD - ROURKELA
TATA PETRODYNE LTD

TEJASKIRAN PHARMACHEM INDUSTRIES PVT LTD
TEKTRONIX INDIA PVT LTD

i TEXAS INSTRUMENtS INDIA PVT LTD

THE BANK OF TOKYO MITSUBISHI UFJ LTD |

- TIMKEN ENGINEERING & RESEARCH INDIA PVT LTD

ZATISI CATERING GROUP AS
ZEN QUALITY ASSURANCE PVT LTD
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I D IGNITARY VISITS

March, 2017 July, 2016

Mr Anil Swarup Mr N R Narayana Murthy
Secretary of School Education Founder, Infosys

and Literacy, visited kitchen visited kitchen in Hubballi
in Vrindavan

22

27

June, 2016
Mr Dominic McAllister
The British Deputy High
Commissioner, visited
kitchen in Bengaluru

August, 2016
Shri Pranab Mukherjee
Hon'ble President of India
graced the 2 billion meals
commemoration in Bengaluru

13

March, 2017
Professor Michael Desa
Trustee on the board of
Cherysh America Foundation,
visited kitchen in Hubballi

March, 2017
Mr KTS Tulsi
Senior Advocate of Supreme
Court of India and Former
Member of Rajya Sabha,
visited kitchen in Vrindavan

25

October, 2016 October, 2016

46 UK Delegates,
led by Sean Angiolillo,

Mr LR Garg , 2 9
Secretary of Education of

Daman & Diu visited kitchen
in Surat

une. J 1 ¢
Ms Sushma Godbole
CEO

Zilla Panchayat -
Dharwad District, visited
kitchen in Hubballi

November, 2016
Ms Jignesha Pandya
Deputy Collector - Mid-Day
Meal Department of Ahmedabad
Municipal Corporation, visited
kitchen in Ahmedabad

visited the kitchen in
Bengaluru (V.K. Hill)

ILLUMINE 32



OUR ACHIEVEMENTS

Our minds are set to accomplish

A goal that defines our cause

The path we take with care

is marked by bricks and milestones

Our trails get matched and measured

Commemorated the serving of 2 billion cumulative meals in the august presence of the And behold the trust we treasure
Hon'ble President of India, ShriPranab Mukheriee @ e We see all with clarity
Akshaya Patra successfully launched new kitchens at Nagpur in Maharashtra; another at Mangalagiri in . = The definition of our grOWth

Andhra Pradesh and at Ajmer in Rajasthan

Akshaya Patra supports education of REANG tribe children in Tripura in association with Great India Talent
School to impart life skills and marketable skills to the children

The Financial Year 2016-17 saw philanthropic collaborations with noted organisations such as
Jamsetjl Tata Trust, Infosys Foundation, Deutsche Bank and Bosch Ltd to mention a notable few

Akshaya Patra USA held 10 large scale events and enjoyed the participation, and engagement of over 100 active
youth ambassadors across all quadrants of the US

Akshaya Patra conducted its first event under the flagship of ‘Chords of Giving, an outreach programme to spread
awareness for the cause with a concert by renowned musicians Sona Mohapatra and Ram Sampath

Completed 1155 Kaizen and 22 Continuous Improvement Projects which led to improvement in food safety
measures, reduction in cycle time, improvement of processes and considerable cost reduction
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

The Nikkei Asia Prize in the Economic and

e BUSINESS INNOVAtiON Category

ClII National Lean Six Sigma Award for successfully
implementing Six Sigma techniques

AVA Digital platinum award for the film -
Giving Every Dream A Chance

Excellence in Health & Education category award at
Global NGO 2017

Shri Madhu Pandit Dasa honoured with The Chanakya Award as
National Achiever 2017 under Social Leadership category

PRCI collateral awards in multiple categories at
Global Communication Conclave
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FUTURE PLANS OF AKSHAYA PATRA

A long road awaits ahead
With distance that blurs
But the v1510n‘of the de
Erase every doubt and

Shall keep walking al cad
Shall notfallzqr ause

Until we see in time g
A world where every child s

We have set the following significant goals for 2017-2018

Achieve zero food safety incidences

We have set forth these strategic directions to accomplish the above goals

Y
Hi

f

|

Implement sustainable growth initiatives to ensure stability
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AKSHAYA PATRA IN THE MEDIA
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In children, we see our future

To serve them is our aim

We join hands to strive forward
Making each child strong and smart

And when they laugh, smile and play

We know we have done our part

The partnership we share with the
Government of India has indeed
empowered the Foundation to
Jfunction and grow under its aegis
and various State Governments. [t is
with this conviction that we are able
to reach and serve millions across
the country.

and all other State Governments for implementing the

pioneering Mid-Day Meal Scheme. This partnership
stands strong as a pillar to encourage us in taking forward
the cause while at the same time, helping us to reach out
across the country - to provide wholesome and nutritious
food for children studying in Government and aided schools.
The incessant pursuit to be an organisation that is driven
by excellence, has given us an impetus to be the beacon of
change in the society.

I tis aprivilege to work with the Government of India

Akshaya Patra became an implementing partner for the
Government of India’s Mid-Day Meal Scheme in 2003.
Itis an effective and a resourceful partnership which
plays a pivotal role in our cause - eliminating classroom
hunger. The partnership has added to the efficiency of the
programme and made it stronger.

The sustainability of this programme has been motivated
by the timely procurement of food by the Government
along with the Food Corporation of India (FCI), and

the Food and Civil Supplies Corporations. It is with
earnestness, we note how the partnership has bloomed
into a perfect symbiosis of supply and demand.

A perfect association can afford improved synergies and
proficiencies - better effectiveness across the operations.
Besides Government subsidies - the operational costs
and overhead are mitigated by donors. Corporate houses,
individuals and well-wishers form a strong leg of this
relationship.

I A STRONG BOND - INSIGHT INTO AN EFFICIENT PARTNERSHIP

The Ministry of Finance has been an
enabler by allowing the Foundation to seek
donations under section 80G of the Income
Tax Act. Under this section, the Foundation
is able to raise funds from the corporates
and individuals to enhance the quality of
meal. The Ministry of Home Affairs has also
given us the permission to collect donations
from overseas donors under the Foreign
Contribution Regulation Act (FCRA), 1976,
thereby further enhancing our efforts
towards resource mobilisation.

A developmental society
is presided by a positive
direction, change for
betterment, evolution
of competencies and
continuous progress through
its awakened minds -
the NGOs, individuals,
corporate and other
well-wishers who work
towards the furtherance of
our society.

The Foundation strives to serve as many
children as possible in its attempt to
eliminate classroom hunger. The desire to
see that children get nutritious meals is the
backbone of the Foundation’s beliefs and
work attitude. An ingrained understanding
of serving children has fostered the
strengthening of the bond with the
Government and donors.

By forging a strategic Public-Private
Partnership with the Government of
India, the State Governments, and donors,
Akshaya Patra has been able to scale its
services across the country, providing
wholesome meals to over 1.66 million
children, every school day.

This partnership has been seminal in aiding

Akshaya Patra to become a champion in
implementing the Mid-Day Meal Scheme.
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" THROUGH THEIR EYES

N »\(tlil,(/\ a Kashyap
A Beautiful Mind

He makes up for his physical limitations with his remarkable ability to comprehend
whatever is being taught in the classroom and what he observes around.

Archana Rawat IR
The Flying Teen of Ramnagar

Archana has become an inspiration for children not just in her village,
but also in neighbouring villages.

Bl Sanjana Borashetti
With Fire in Her Heart

Sanjan, with two neatly tied plaits, is not only a school topper but is also the
go-to person for her classmates.

Sohil Khan IR

Performer of Madari Basti

His intention is to get his grandmother and his entire family, including his 4 |
stepmother and step brothers out of the throes of poverty.

INSPIRING STORIES
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A Beautiful Mind

s a 15-year old boy, Aditya, studies in Village
Panchayat Primary School at Ulas Khera,
Lucknow. In a classroom where everyone
sits on the floor, Aditya sits on a bench. While some
might call it an oddity, the teachers explain that he
is differently abled. The school authorities have
considered it as an exceptional case and provide him
abench.

When Aditya was three, he suffered a fall while
playing in his house. The fall had affected his limbs,
and as aresult, he is not able to bend his knees, use
his hands to hold or pick heavy things, or turn his
neck. If the school authorities are compassionate
enough to arrange a bench for him, his friends —
Anuj, Vishesh, and Ravindra — are kind enough to
help him with academics.

With all his difficulties, his brilliance ploughs through
and comes to the fore. The child is a prodigy.

Budhi Kashyap, Aditya’s father, is a small-time
farmer from Ulas Khera, Lucknow. He is a typical
man of the soil in his early 50s, with greying hair and
a stubble. His family comprises his wife, Kalavati;

six sons, and four daughters — three of whom are
married. Aditya is his ninth child. He admits that it is
difficult to sustain such a large family.

“ He likes the food that
is served in the school.

He likes kheer and dal
chawal the most”

Budhi owns a small piece of land, but the produce from it is insufficient to support the entire family. Therefore,
he and his three other sons work as farm labourers in other people’s fields during the harvest season. While
two of his sons — Aditya and Abhishek — are studying in school, another one is suffering from mental iliness.
The youngest daughter helps mother with housework. It's evident in his eyes that Budhi is concerned about
her marriage.

Kalavati, Aditya's mother, is glad that at least two of her sons are getting food at school. She narrates some
incidents from Aditya’s childhood while affectionately running her fingers through his hair. He, however, is not
amused by his mother’s affection in front of others — a fact not lost upon his brother Abhishek, who stands at
the door giggling.

“He likes the food that is served in the school. He likes kheer and dal chawal the most it seems,” she declares.

Aditya sings folksongs which are appreciated by his classmates. He has won a prize for singing in the school’s
annual event, his voice has a haunting and beautiful quality with a lingering essence which remains with the
listeners for along time.




It is interesting to note that harnessing Desplte hIS Interest
in electronics, Aditya

solar energy is not a part of his school
syllabus. When asked from where he
got the idea, “(from) my mind,” he quips,

‘ ‘ breaking into a mischievous smile. He then Wants tO become a
. . narrates a story of how, when on one of
I I’ke Iltel’ate their visits to a temple, he saw solar panels teaCher and teaCh
being used to power streetlights. He not
people, only understood the theory of the concept,

but even applied it effectively.

| want to
. ” On enquiring if he will be able to power a
be “ke them bigger fan or light if he is provided a bigger
solar panel; heis quick to explain that it
is dangerous as there is a possibility of
getting electrocuted. He is well aware of
the hazards of electricity. He knows where

Singing is not Aditya’s only prowess. One of his todraw the line.
teachers was all praises for his comprehension
ability. He makes up for his physical limitations “My mother thinks this is dangerous,” he
with his remarkable ability to comprehend smirks pointing at the battery and wires,
whatever is being taught in the classroom and “She thinks I'll get stuck to these wires
what he observes around. His collection of
toys include AA battery-operated mini fan, a In his free time at home, Aditya watches
source of light made from an array of LEDs, cartoons on TV— his favourite cartoon
and a charging device to harness solar energy. being Motu Patlu. In the school, his best
friends Anuj, Vishesh, and Ravindra, help
He has made the fan using a small motor from him in studies and also play Ludo with him.
anold car. This motor is attached to a spliced
wooden stick and the structure has a strong Despite his interest in electronics, Aditya
base to make it stand on its own. There is also wants to teach computers to children.
an array of LEDs which he uses when there is His interest in computers is surprising,
apower failure. There is a cell phone battery, considering that the school doesn’t have
which he uses to power his toys. computers as a subject as of now. Akshaya
Patra and I'TI have tied up to provide a
And how does he recharge the cell phone computer lab to the school. As of now, the
battery when it drains? He says, ‘| use my children are only taught theory and yet,
mini solar charger to charge it Itis a solar Aditya seems to have grown fond of it. For
panel from a solar-powered flashlight. He has Aditya, the larger goal in life is to get well
attached a long wire to it and suspended it educated.

outside his house. o
“I'like literate people,” he says, ‘| want to be

like them.”




BArchana Rawat

The Flying Teen of Ramnagar

------------------------------------------------------

s she stood there looking at the bunch of
Amedals that she has won over the last four

years, her eyes twinkled with a sense of
achievement. Even her mother was beaming with
pride, and why wouldn't she ... her daughter had more

than a dozen gold medals to her credit at a tender
age of 14.

A VI standard student from the Salempur-Pataura
Primary School in Kakori (Lucknow), Archana has
become an inspiration for children not just in her
village, but also in neighboring villages. Ask her about
the most memorable incident in her life, and she
points at the larger of the two trophies that adorn the
small display cabinet in her house alongside all the
medals. She was awarded this trophy when she was
crowned the All Over Champion.

Archana’s tryst with track and field began when she
was in Il standard in Village Panchayat Primary
School in Ramnagar, Lucknow. It was Mr. Abdul Rauf
— ‘Rauf Sir’ for her and the family — who introduced
her to the world of athletics. Today, she studies in

a different school, and yet, the guru-shishya bond
between Rauf Sir and Archanais as strong as ever.

Rauf Sir’s contribution in her life has been
inspirational and motivating for her. His knowledge

about sports in general and athletics in particular,
despite him not being a PE teacher, is commendable.

In 2016, she participated
in four events: long jump,
100m, 200m, and 400m
sprint, and bagged Gold
in each of them
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He is full of praises for Archana. “We identified her talent in 1l standard itself and decided to groom her at the
young age,” he said. “We have tried to help her as much as possible. | am not a physical education teacher, but

| have tried to refine her technique using my knowledge about the sport and help her perform better,” he said.
“Then again, the teacher is only as good as his student is, and Archana has ensured that | hold my head high”

Rauf sir narrates one particular incident that highlights his understanding of Archana and her sport. “When we
decided to go to the Chowk Stadium to practice, we faced a new challenge. Archana was accustomed to running
in salwar kameez, but at the stadium, she had to wear proper sportswear. In order to make her feel comfortable,
| devised a plan. | started taking her to the stadium every day, but for the first few days, we would just go there
and sit instead of practicing. Gradually, she got accustomed to the idea of wearing sportswear and that helped
her in her performance. If we had not done this exercise, it would have made her conscious and her performance
would have been affected”

All along Rauf Sir and other teachers continued to support her; they built a sand pit for her to practice long
jump; they helped her with the route, and even ensured that she doesn’'t miss out on academics because of her
practice.

Over the year, the investment by Archana’s teachers yielded rich dividends. In 2016, she participated in four
events: long jump, 100 m, 200 m, and 400 m sprint, and bagged Gold in each of them. In course of this Golden
Run, she even competed with VIl standard girls — girls who were two years older than her — and still came out
on top.

Such Gold Rush is not something new for Archana though. It has been the characteristic performance for the
14-year-old all along. Long jump and 100 m sprint are her main events and she excels in both. She has won Gold
in these events every year starting from |l standard — the only exception being the one year when the athletic
meet was not held.
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“ When | am training, | need

to eat a lot of nutritious food.
So | am glad that we get it
in school. | love it
as much as | love
home-cooked meal”

Lajjawati Devi, Archana’s mother lives in a typical red
brick house, the kind that is common in that part of the
country. Her house boasts of a display cabinet which
is decked with medals and trophies that speak volumes
about Archana’s on-field heroics.

Archana lives with her mother and younger brother. She
lost her father to cancer a few years ago. Since then, her
mother has been taking care of the family. She works

as an agricultural help during the harvest season. In her
free time, she does embroidery work — an additional
source of income to help her fulfill the needs of her
children.

Afierce matriarch, Lajjawati believes that parents
should encourage, and teachers should guide children
properly — only then will children be inspired to do well.
‘Archana has been very good at sports all along. She

has participated in several sports meets and won many
medals. | am proud of her;" she stresses. About Nitesh,
she says, “He is just 10 year old now. He will look up to
his sister as an inspiration.”

When Archana was in the GP Primary School, it was
convenient for the family as the school was in the
neighborhood — less than 50 m away. But after she
completed her V standard, she had to take admission
in the Upper Primary School in Salempur-Pataura.

“In our village school, children can only study till VV
standard,” says Archana’s mother as she accepts the
plight of children. “After that, they have to go to the
next village for further education. In rural areas, people
are prejudiced. When we send our girls out to studly,
people make a big deal about it. Imagine their reaction
if we send them (girls) out to participate in sports.

All the noise, however, hasn't stopped Lajjawati from
encouraging Archana; nor has it stopped Archana from
giving her best.
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She has a rigorous training routine she follows
strictly. “l wake up at five in the morning and

go for ajog. That is followed by warm up and
stretching session, and training for my track

and field events,’ she says. After school, she
plays football. In the evening, she completes her
homework and helps her brother in his studies.
She also helps her mother in housework, such as
cooking, fetching water, or cleaning.

As a sportsperson, Archana knows the value

of nutritious food. The importance of eating
healthy food has not just been covered in her
syllabus, but also conveyed to her by Rauf Sir. It is
therefore, not surprising that she looks forward
to Akshaya Patra food every day. Her favorite is
dal-chawal. “When | am training, | need to eat a lot
of nutritious food. So | am glad that we get food
in school. | love it as much as | love home-cooked
meal.

Archana wants to join the police force and

serve the nation. She believes that her sports
background will help her achieve this dream,
especially because the selection procedure
involves a physical exam that she intends to excel.
This, she says, is the most she can do for her
mother.

As for her mother, she wants Archana and Nitesh
to excel in both, academics and sports, and have
a bright future. “If her father was there,” she said,
“he would have been very happy. In fact, he would
have done much more to see Archana succeed.

At Archana’s primary school, sports meet is held
every month. The purpose is to inculcate the
competitive spirit in children at a young age. Even
today, Archana attends these monthly sports
meets that made her the athlete she is. The only
thing that has changed is that now she serves as
an inspiration for all the children in the school.
The girl, who looks at PT. Usha as her sports idol,
now serves as an inspiration for others.

Everyone wants to become like Archana didi.

-y,
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BSanjana Borashetti
With Fire in Her Heart

©0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

around 9 am, completes pending homework, attends
the morning assembly and gets on with VIII Standard
classes for the rest of her day.

I t's just another day for her; she reaches school

Sanjana Borashetti, with two neatly tied plaits, is

not only a school topper but is also the go-to person
for her classmates. In love with literature, especially
poems, Sanjana has her own collection of poems
written in Kannada in a class workbook. After school,
she heads home which shelters seven people under the
same roof; a home that has grown accustomed to living
without electricity.

Until four years ago, everything was normal in this
household. However, it took a different direction when
her father could not repay a few loans and owing to
mounting bills, the house lost its power supply. Four
years on, the house continues to live without the
electricity.

Sanjana’s father is a milkman - delivers milk door-to-
door. Her mother works as a domestic help. While her
parents get busy in the morning, she starts her day
with a prayer. At times, she helps mother fetch water
from a nearby well - the family needs at least 10to 15
pots of water every day - cleans the house, and helps
her brother with his homework.

In school, she supervises many activities such as
assembly, attendance and daily news (relevant current
affairs are announced every day). As the class monitor

for atotal of 36 students, she ensures her classmates
are aware of upcoming activities in school.

Sanjana has her own
collection of poems
written in Kannada in a
class workbook
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During school lunch, she gets to eat
freshly cooked food; rice and sambar,
and pulao are her favourites

If not electricity, there is a lot of hope for the family. In order to study and complete her homework, Sanjana
uses a torch. “There are two torches at home. | use one while studying,’ she says. Although they do not have
access to electricity, the young girl excels in studies.

To live without a few basic necessities can be a challenge. But a few get on without perceiving it as a hindrance.
For Sanjana, television is a forgotten tool and lack of electricity is no reason to complain. With all the support

that she gets from her teachers, she has been performing well in her academics and is also sure of her interests.

“When | grow up, | want to become a DC;” she says. District Collector (DC) is one of the most competitive jobs
in India and Sanjana wants to take up this role to put an end to the bribe culture.

Government Higher Primary School, located in Bairidevara Koppa, Hubballi, is well maintained, clean, and the
students are enthusiastic. A section of this school was built under the ‘Freedom through Education’ project led
by Round Table India.

For Sanjana, being in school amongst her classmates means everything. Be it studying or spending free time,
she prefers school environment. During school lunch, she gets to eat freshly cooked food; Rice and Sambar, and
Pulao are her favourites. Back at home, food is prepared on an earthen stove using firewood.

When there’s time, Sanjana writes poems - she learnt poetry in a summer camp a year ago - collects favourite
quotes from books and also collects information that would improve her knowledge. Books are her best
company and she is grateful for the education she is currently receiving.

ILLUMINE 54




BSohil Khan

adari Bastiin Sanganer, Jaipur, has become
M synonymous to street magic, for this, is the

source of bread and butter for most people
residing here. Almost every household here has to
its credit, one street magician. Some of them are
veterans who can make a rubber snake come to life
and dead pigeons fly, while others are amateurs who
are learning the tricks of trade. For these street-
magicians-in-making, the right of passage is making
coins vanish in thin air and appear in someone’s
pockets or behind someone’s ears. One such
entertainer-in-making is 12-year-old Sohil Khan.

A1V standard student in the Government Upper
Primary School in Pratapnagar, Jaipur, Sohil is among
the many children from Madari Basti, for whom
school is the silver lining in the cloud ... their way out
of poverty. Street magic has long been a form of art
which has been passed on from one generation to
the next. Of late, however, it has lost its sheen. Even
the veterans of the trade want their children to get a
proper job instead of walking the path of hardships
that they have endured all this while.

After Sohil’s mother expired, his father, Umad Khan
married Jafran. He has three sons from his first wife:
Sohil, Ronit, and Taufig, and three from his second
wife, Mohit, Tauheed, and Shoaib. Sohil and his
younger brothers, Ronit and Taufiq live with their

grandmother, a few blocks away. Both of them are in Il
standard in the same school as Sohil. His stepbrothers,

in contrast, are too young to go to school.

“ My grandfather taught
magic to my father. He
in turn, taught it to me.
| don't really like it, but |
don’t hate it either”
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There are days when, instead of stepping
out to play, he has to step out to support
the family

Young Sohil aspires to become a doctor and is willing to work hard to realise his dream. He likes studying
in general, but Mathematics and English are his favourite subjects. His intention is to earn good money and
get his grandmother and his entire family, including his stepmother and step brothers out of the throes of
poverty. “We have a small house, which is not in good shape. | want to renovate it and maybe add another
floor, so that all of us can live together, he says. For now though, he is stuck in their family business.

“My grandfather taught magic to my father. He in turn, taught it to me; | don't really like it, but | don't hate it
either.” It was obvious why he didn't like it; it was not helping them lead a good life. But then, he didn’t have
the option to hate it either, as the money he earned from it, was crucial for them. Sohil goes out on Sundays
or other holidays to perform street magic in different parts of Jaipur and during vacations, he even goes to
other locations with the elder boys in the neighbourhood and works as jamura (assistant).

Like other children, even Sohil likes to play with his friends. After returning from the school, he completes
his homework and then steps out to play usual hide-and-seek or catching the ball. The idea of banter with
friends brings about a smile on his face. Then there are days when, instead of stepping out to play, he has to
step out to support the family. On a good day, he earns 50-100 rupees. But on most days, it's around 10-20
rupees.
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“ My favourite is
dal-chawal, but we also get
roti, halwa, kheer, rabdi,
and even biscuits and
bananas at times”

Sohil has fond memories of the time he spent with

his father. He remembers his father telling him to
concentrate on school because he believed that it will
help him in the future. As with other people in Madari
Basti, even Umad Khan perhaps felt that his sons
should take up a good job so that they don't have to
worry about their future — a sentiment that is shared
by Sohil’s daadi (grandmother) as well.

The first thing that you noticed in their house is that
they led a frugal existence. The house was not in a good
shape. There were two old wooden chairs and a few
blankets strewn around in the living room. There was
no fan and a small incandescent bulb dangled from the
ceiling.

Sohil's grandmother, Bhawra had gone for a
panchayat meeting. So he sent one of the kids in his
neighbourhood to call her. She was probably in her
early 60s with greying hair and wrinkled skin and yet,
had the enthusiasm of a 30-year old. She worked at a
scrapyard sorting garbage for a living. This would earn
her 200 rupees a day, which she would then spend on
her grandsons. “The only reason | work is because |
want to give them a good life; they don't have anyone
but me”

Her sons live with her but they are busy with their

respective families and now, her only worry is what will
happen to Sohil and his brothers after she is gone.
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Sohil's grandmother was glad that they had
learned to perform magic but she didn't want
them to pursue it as a career. “We just taught
them these tricks so that they can earn for
themselves if need be, but | would prefer if
they work hard and get a proper job instead
of depending on 40-50 rupees that they earn
from performing on the streets” According to
her, street magic had no future. “You ask for
Katputli Bastiin Jaipur and everyone knows
about it. Making Katputlis is considered an
art form, so katputli basti has become famous.
Ask for Madari Basti and no one knows about
it. The deplorable condition we live inis only
because street magic is not considered an art
anymore,” she implores.

Sohil’s family was actually living in such
difficult conditions, so it wasn't surprising that
he likes the variety of food that is served at
school. “My favourite is dal-chawal, but we also
get roti, halwa, kheer, rabdi, and even biscuit
and bananas at times.” Even his grandmother
says that they tell her what they had for

lunch whenever they are in good mood. She is
thankful that the three of them get one good
meal in school.

When Sohil starts performing, he makes sure
that he gives his 100 percent. The enthusiasm
on his face is difficult to miss. As with born
performers, even he can magically connect
with his audience by merely interacting

with them. It's too early to say whether he is
destined to make it big in the world of magic,
or whether magic will just be a hobby for him
inthe future. As for confidence, rest assured
there is no dearth of the same.

When Sohil starts

performing, he makes

sure that he gives his

100 percent.

The enthusiasm on his

face is difficult fg miss
B
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The jingle every coin makes
Dark ink on each page admits
Is not just an ideal on print

A tenet binds us proud
The practice earns us trust
See everything in from out

Where we stand, we are clear
What we say, are to the letter

And truth is the flavour in our voice.

A child needs the right nutrition
and the right motivation to stucy
well and dream big. Akshaya
Patra aims to help in both by giving
wholesome nutritious mid-day meals
to Government and Government
aided schools. For us to ascertain that
a continuous flow of funds arrives
[from different sources, sincerity and
reliability of the Foundation must be
established.

n NGO, to be considered a credible entity,
Ahas to follow established norms of financial

transparency and accountability. In our
aspiration to be a progressive organisation, we focus on
transparency. To create a system which is accountable
and robust, it is imperative that each department
and section of the organisation is transparent in its
operations.

It is important that the funds received from the
Government and donors are used judiciously. To
ensure transparency in our workings, we give foremost
importance to financial transparency. This helps us to
sustain the confidence that the donors have reposed.

We comply with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and with the accounting standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICA. Itis our endeavour to ensure that the donors are
informed about the organisation’s mission, operations,
other stakeholders, and beneficiaries. This kind of
transparency helps us keep a healthy association with
the donors.

Corporates are more interested in looking for not-
for-profit organisations with whom they can partner.
These not-for-profits are evaluated on a comprehensive
metrics; the importance given to financial transparency
is pivotal.

FINANCIAL TRANSPARENCY - OUR STRENGTH

We strongly adhere to the
conviction that transparency
is mandatory for good
governance and hence
crucial for the organisation.

Akshaya Patra, being an implementing
arm of the Government’s Mid-Day Meal
Scheme, also ensures that it follows Union
Government’s mandates in letter and
spirit.

Having a strong audit committee is crucial
to establish the accuracy of the financials.
Internal audit, through audit firms of good
status contributes to the robustness of the
system. Along with these audits, we also
provide an Independent Auditors’ Report
to further strengthen the reliability of our
financials.

Financial integrity maintained in recording
of transactions in the book of accounts
builds transparency and trust. Segregation
of government and donor funds by
maintaining separate bank accounts while
issuing Utilisation Certificates for grains
provided by Government is immensely
helpful in keeping things on level.

We maintain financial integrity and
transparency even when we practise
donor engagement and timely
communication. The scrutiny when
supported by donor audit done by donors
or by professional firms only adds to our
credibility. Issuing Utilisation Certificate
to donors for funds spent by the NGO not
only increases the trust but also ensures
that the donor is aware of the exact

way their contributions are spent. This
strength and commitment has brought us
alongway in channelising our energies to
further our mission. It also enhances our
reputation as a credible and trustworthy
organisation.
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0 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Overview

The year was quite challenging, and exciting. The Akshaya Patra Foundation continued making efforts in the direction of
impacting more lives through the Mid-Day Meal Programme of the Government.

The year saw one of the biggest reforms undertaken by the Government in recent times in the shape of demonetization.
This measure has helped to clean the economy and trigger the transition towards a more organised economy. The
Foundation made an early start (many years ago) towards the process of accepting donations by way of cheques and

modes other than that of cash, and for the year, 99.61 % of our donations was collected in modes other than that of cash.

The Foundation partnered with leading corporates and launched a nation-wide movement called ‘Feed the Future Now’
with active participation by the Ministry of Women and Child Development.

The Government is an important stakeholder, we partnered with them as member of the National Training Committee
to help formulate a Model Memorandum of Understanding to standardise the terms of engagement between the State
Government and NGOs for the conduct of the Mid-Day Meal Programme.

The recent Guidelines issued by the MHRD for NGOs operating in the mid-day meal sphere provides more clarity in
much needed areas and will positively impact our operations. We also participated in an event organised by NITI AAYOG
and shared our thoughts on matters concerning governance of NGOs.

The Government has taken a significant leap to usher in good governance by mandating AADHAR seeding for
beneficiaries of the Mid-Day Meal Programme. While we welcome this move of the Government for implementing an
AADHAR based scheme for mid-day meals, we sincerely hope that no deserving child would be deprived of meals due to
non-availability of Aadhar and that this will be implemented in a phased manner.

The Foundation ended the Financial Year 2016-17 on a positive note, posting a surplus of ¥1,460.08 lakhs.

The surplus would be utilised for:

Enhancing the nutritional content in the meal

Augmenting the working capital requirements

Refurbishing of existing kitchens wherever required

Expanding the volume of mid-day meals and other feeding programmes

Feeding Operations

The Foundation achieved a CAGR of 10% on feeding volume during the past ten years commencing from
Financial Year 2007-08 to 2016-17.

During the year, our Foundation’s Head Office, based in Bengaluru was recognised as a ‘Great Place to Work’ by the
‘Great Place to Work' Institute.

We commenced feeding operations in Ajmer, Nagpur and Mangalagiri during the year. The feeding volume under the
Mid-Day Meal Programme was scaled up to 2,669.14 lakhs during the year representing a growth of 6% over the
previous year.

In the Mid-Day Meal Programme, we reached out to 1.66 million beneficiaries across 13,549 schools.

On the Quality front, the Foundation accomplished the following:

Food Safety and Quality Control Laboratory was inaugurated in Lucknow

Food Development and Technology Center was inaugurated in Ahmedabad

Hubballi branch won the CIlI Lean Six Sigma award in a National Level Competition on Operational Excellence
Surat won the CII Award for Food Safety-2016 in the category of ‘Strong Commitment to Excel in Food Safety’
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QOur Vadodara branch was awarded a Letter of Appreciation by Cll (Confederation of Indian Industry) for Food Safety.
Inour endeavour to bring in continual improvements in operations and to engage more effectively with the employees,
we completed 22 Continual Improvement Projects using DMAIC (Six Sigma) / PDCA methodology, and more than
1,100 Kaizen improvement projects. Through these, we were able to achieve significant reduction in cycle times and
cost optimisation in addition to streamlining the processes and making them more efficient. This will help us serve
more beneficiaries.

We have commenced implementation of ISO 22000:2005 at Ajmer, Rourkela and Bhubaneshwar.
We are also working towards obtaining the QMS Certification for our processes in Head Office.

With a view to standardising, optimising costs and ensuring usage of the best ingredients, we have published a
handbook on the Foundation’s raw materials specifications.

Based on the IOT (Internet of things) approach, we are working on a Smart Kitchen initiative. This would provide
feedback on the recipe, temperature etc., and we will be able to enhance the quality and taste of our meal and also
maintain consistency.

The Foundation is in the final stages of releasing the ‘Kitchen on Wheels’ for disaster relief purposes. This mobile
kitchen would be able to cook food for about 4,000 to 5,000 people per cooking cycle of 4 hours. This kitchen would
be operated round the clock in times of disaster providing relief efforts to the needy in times of distress.

Resource Mobilisation

We forged successful partnerships with Corporates, PSUs, Foundations, High Net-Worth Individuals and Donors.
This has helped us expand the footprint in new locations.

The start of Financial Year 2017-18 witnessed the repealing of Section 35AC which provided 100% tax deduction to
donors for the Mid-Day Meal Programme. Due to this change, the Foundation is providing only 50% tax deduction
under section 80G of the Income Tax Act, 1961 to its donors for donations being collected from 1st April 2017.

In order to continue our efforts of reaching out to more beneficiaries, we sincerely urge the Government to provide
for 100% deduction for Mid-Day Meal Programme under Section 80G of the Income Tax Act. We have given a
representation to the Government of India for the same.

The key focus areas for the year were:

Ensuring renewals of MOUs with existing donors
Employee engagement activities with more than 2,500 volunteers across various corporates
Implementation of close to 50 digital/alliance campaigns

The Foundation continue to file the returns prescribed under the Foreign Contribution Regulation Act (FCRA) on time.
We would like to thank our donors and well-wishers for all the support and contribution received during the year.

For the Financial year 2017-18, the projected meal volume is 3,576.70 lakhs and the estimated funds required for
feeding the children apart from government contributions would be approximately ¥152.03 crores.

Macro socio-economic environment of the country

The economy appears poised for continued growth and the International Monetary Fund (IMF) has forecasted a
growth rate of 7.2% for India as against 3.4% for the global economy.

The Government of India has continued on its path of bringing in reforms in areas much needed. The Government
also implemented the path breaking reform of Goods and Services Tax at the time of publishing this report and this is
expected to contribute 1-2% to the nation’s GDP.

We urge the Government to look at a refund mechanism for GST paid on input goods and services as there is no output
GST liability for partnering NGO's. This will help in furthering the Government’s programme by reaching out to more
beneficiaries.
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For the Mid-Day Meal Programme, the Government of India has allocated a budget outlay of 10,000 crores for the
financial year 2017-18. This represents an increase of 3% over the previous year’s budget outlay of 9,700 crores. We
urge the Government of India to enhance the allocation towards cash subsidy for Mid-Day Meal Programme due to
growing population of children attending schools and this would hence increase the beneficiaries. The Model MOU
released by MHRD in the month of April 2017 recommends that feeding claims for cash subsidy shall be paid within one
week from submission of the same to the concerned Government.

During the financial year 2017-18, we intend to engage more closely with various State Governments to reduce the
days’ sales outstanding of receivables which would improve the cash flows of the Foundation.

The Mid-Day Meal Scheme has had a positive impact in alleviating classroom hunger and thereby helping children
focus on education. These children will become the torch bearers of the country in the years to come.

Plans for Financial Year 2017-18

The Foundation would continue its journey of expanding its footprint in the mid-day meal sphere and Integrated Child
Development Scheme by focusing on increasing capacity utilisation of existing kitchens and optimisation of cost per
meal.

Three new kitchens started feeding, and seven kitchens are in the pipeline vide details given below

Expected Date of Kitchen
Commencement of Feeding Capacity
Operations (in Lakhs)

Project Status/
Commencement

The Foundation would continue to engage with the governments to expand its reach to explore new geographies as well.
We will be launching a programme for rural initiatives in the states of Karnataka and Andhra Pradesh.

We plan to step-up our advocacy efforts to spread awareness about the cause of ending classroom hunger through
Mid-Day Meal Programme.

We will pursue our endeavours to inculcate benchmark practices with strengthened review mechanism to
oversee the implementation.

The support received from various stakeholders has enabled us to reach 1.66 million beneficiaries during the year 2016-17.

We look forward to continue receiving this support for the coming year as well.
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B HUMAN RESOURCE AND MANAGEMENT

Head Count

Total

Remuneration of 5 Highest Paid Employees for year ended 31st Mar 17

Remuneration of the Lowest Paid Staff Members:

%5200/ (as per the Minimum Wages in the respective State Government Minimum Wages Notification).
Apart from this, the Foundation also adheres to the Social Security Regulations.

Total

Total

*Amounts are rounded off to the nearest thousand
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- TRUSTEES’ REPORT

To the Stakeholders,

Your Foundation’s Trustees are pleased to present the Annual Report of the 17th year of the Foundation along with
audited accounts under Indian GAAP and IFRS for the financial year that ended on 31 March 2017.

Financial performance

Expenditure towards:

Income from:

Donations 15,672.38 44.81% 12,113.39 40.97% 29.38%
Subsidies 18,017.41 51.51% 16,525.97 55.90% 9.02%
Others 1,285.77 3.68% 924.03 3.13% 39.15%
Totallncome 3497556 10000% 2956339  10000%  1831%

Materials and utilities

consumed 16,981.97 48.55% 14,445.14 48.86% 17.56%
Personnel cost 8,070.48 23.07% 6,615.29 22.38% 22.00%
Other operating expenses 5,308.05 15.18% 4,210.22 14.24% 26.08%
| 3036050 8680% 2527065 B548%  20.14%
Operating Results 4,615.06 13.20% 4.292.74 14.52% 7.51%
Depreciation 3,154.98 9.02% 2,610.09 8.83% 20.88%

Opening Balance 17,591.57 12,109.24 5,482.33
Receipts from:

Donations 21,527.61 55.73% 17,149.90 55.20% 4,377.71
Subsidies 15,537.90 40.22% 13,061.80 42.04% 2,476.10
Others 1,565.15 4.05% 858.12 2.76% 707.02
TotalReceipts (A) 3863066 10000% 3106982 10000% 756083
Payments towards:

Revenue Expenditure 27,301.06 70.56% 22,505.84 72.44% 479522
Capital Expenditure 5,923.25 15.44% 3,048.94 9.81% 2,874.31
Others 135.77 0.35% 32.71 0.11% 103.06
TotalPayments(B) 3336008 8636% 2558749 8235% 777259
E:if;;fjifg;pts over 527058 13.64% 548233 17.65%
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During the year, the Foundation earned a surplus of ¥1,460.08 lakhs from Operations.

Theincrease in surplus is due to growth in Government subsidy and grain grant by 9.02%, and increase in donation
income by 29.38% over the previous financial year.

The Foundation plans to utilise the surplus as below :

To meet the Revenue Expenditure of existing and upcoming new kitchens

To meet the Capital Expenditure as and when required

To invest in employee related initiatives

To meet the plans to scale up in the near term while we continue to raise funds from donors for sustainable operations
To enhance automation of processes and invest in information technology (IT) as we scale up operations

To create areserve to meet six months’ cost of operations (over and above government support).

The total revenues recognised during the financial year 2016-17 increased to ¥34,975.56 lakhs resulting in 18.31%
growth over the previous year. The growth in revenue is analysed below:

Subsidies from Government

The incremental revenue from the Government during the year is ¥1,491.44 lakhs. This growth of 9.02% is due to 3%
increase in overall volume of meals served during the year, and aided by increase in cash subsidy from government, per meal.

(% in Lakhs)

~ ShareofSubsidylncome

| TERENe wen wsaw o gmeees
Karnataka 6,461.09 6,050.40 36% 37%
Uttar Pradesh 2,029.50 1,566.20 11% 9%
Rajasthan 1,648.56 1,347.63 9% 8%
Odisha 1,640.38 1,741.84 9% 11%
Guijarat 3,917.33 3,547.66 22% 21%
Andhra Pradesh 407.44 458.23 2% 3%
Telangana 1,292.75 1,204.38 7% 7%
Chhattisgarh 296.29 281.67 2% 2%
Assam 324.07 327.96 2% 2%

Table 1: Analysis of Subsidies (Cash & Grains) ]
AmountinX

State-wise Subsidy per mid-day meal (Cash & Grain)

Of the total government support, the share
of subsidies from Karnataka and Gujarat

Governments constitutes 58% of the total. .

Expansion of mid-day meal feeding in Mysore, Karnataka /.19 /.08

Lucknow and Kakinada, and commencement of Uttar Pradesh 642 5.55

feeding in Ajmer and Mangalagiri contributed )

to the growth in Government Subsidies. Rl S0 279
Odisha 5.82 5.63

The subsidy per mid-day meal received from Gujarat 6.44 588

each State Government during the year with -

previous year comparison is given on the right. Andhra Pradesh .87 6.84
Telangana 7.13 6.61
Chhattisgarh 5.84 5.61
Assam 4.90 4.66

Table 2: State wise subsidy per meal
*includes subsidy towards Ksheera Bhagya Programme
** lower due to reduction in cash subsidy by % 1/- per meal due to non-serving of egg
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The Central and State Governments continue to encourage and provide unflinching support for the Mid-Day Meal
Programme. This has provided immense strength to the Foundation to further contribute and expand the feeding

volume to more number of children in coming years.

Income from Donations

The donation income is based on the Revenue Recognition policy of the Foundation and the policy is mentioned in
Schedule 1 (vi) of the Financial Statements.

Donation Income

T in Lakhs 122.51
‘ 2,108.62
43.87

148.83 13,397.38 ) )

1,721.85 Feeding - In Kind

%g;ﬁé o5 u Fixed Assets - Cash
» Fixed Assets - In Kind
= Feeding - Cash
Chart 1: Income from Donations
Source: Income and Expenditure Account

2015-16 2016-17

Donations Received
The below chart displays the total donations collected by the Foundation during the respective years.

The overall donations collected for Revenue Expenditure during the year to conduct the programmes increased by 12%
over the previous year, thanks to the generous contributions from individuals, corporates, trusts and other foundations.

The donations collected during the year towards investment in fixed assets increased by 146% compared to the
previous year due to expansion / replacements in existing kitchens and investment in upcoming new kitchens.

Donation Received

Zin Lakhs 147869
1,995.07 5,628.57 Trust fund receipts
2,289.02 = Donation for fixed assets
12,865.81 14.400.41 = Donation for feeding

Chart 2: Donations received
Source: Receipts and Payments account

2015-16 2016-17

During the year, the Foundation received corpus donations of 1,484.04 lakhs with a specific mandate that the funds
form part of corpus of the trust at all times. These funds are unrestricted capital receipts and can be utilised for any
general objectives of charity as per the Trust deed.

Endowment funds received during the year to the extent of 14.59 lakhs are meant for specific programmes, and
herein interest earned alone would be utilised for the programme expenses.

The details of In-Kind Donations received during the year are as follows:

Amount in ¥ Lakhs

In Kind Donations 2016-17 2015-16

Fixed Assets 43.87 25.76
Provisions & Groceries 45.13 71.68
Services 77.38 77.15
Total 166.38 174.59

Table 3: In-Kind Donations

Other Income

Other income of the Foundation comprise largely of interest earnings and other sources amounting to ¥1,285.77
lakhs during the year (previous year ¥924.03 lakhs). Interest earnings constitute major portion of other income and
the absolute increase was possible due to improved cash flows and judicious investment decisions.

During the year, the Foundation channelised the deployment of funds in high interest yielding eligible instruments to
maximise the earnings.

Revenue Expenditure

The total Revenue Expenses including depreciation during the year was ¥33,515.48 lakhs as compared to
%27,880.74 lakhs for the previous year and the break-up of the same is represented below:

Analysis of Revenue expenditure
Zin Lakhs

Materials and Utilities consumed

16,981.97 Personnel cost
14.445.14 ®  Depreciation /Amortization
807048 = Other Operating expenses

6,615.29

*Includes depreciation

3,154.98
5,308.05

Chart 3: Analysis of Revenue Expenditure
2015-16 2016-17 Source: Income and Expenditure account



During the year, materials and utilities spend in absolute amounts increased by 17.56% over the previous year. We
increased the content in the meal by enhancing the quantity of food raw material content by 30 grams which resulted in
improved nutritional value to children.

The consumption of provisions and groceries has increased by 17% during the year in comparison to the previous year.
The increase in consumption is due to growth in meals volume, additional content in the meal and cost increase in dhal
and pulses and dairy products which are the major ingredients in the meals.

During the year, cost of kitchen and distribution fuel increased by 23% and power, lighting, and water charges
increased by 18%. This is due to growth in meals volume in Mysuru, Kakinada and Lucknow and commencement of
operations in 3 new locations.

During the year, personnel costs increased by 22% over the previous year. The increase is primarily due to scaling-up
of operations in some of the existing kitchens and commencement of operations in Nagpur, Ajmer and Mangalagiri, and

due toincrease in Minimum Wages notified by the State Governments.

The Foundation has spent 91% of the total expenditure on mid-day-meal feeding, 8% on other feeding programmes and
1% of the total cost on other programmes.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Foundation spent ¥6,098.72 lakhs on Capital Expenditure across all the branches.

The following table illustrates the branch wise Capital Expenditure incurred during the year:

% in Lakhs

Branch Name Capital Expenditure

Bengaluru 663.80
Bhavnagar 592.83
Hyderabad 510.18
Puri 414.85
Jigani 356.43
Ahmedabad 280.07
Corporate Office 156.09
Narsingi 231.83
Bhuj 229.56
Ballari 225.57
Vijayawada 220.76
Mangaluru 214.84
Other Locations * 2001.91
Total 6,098.72

Table 4: Branch-wise Capital Expenditure spends
*Individually less than 2 Crore in each branch

Branch Name

The following table highlights the category-wise capital expenditure incurred during the year in various kitchens:

% in Lakhs

Corporate Other

Office Kitchens Vsitz!

Bengaluru  Bhavnagar  Hyderabad Puri Jigani  Ahmedabad

Land - - - - - - - 22955| 22955
Buildings & 0.06 340.19 27007 | 13346 | 23686 6.39 - 47981 | 146684
Civil works

Kitchen

and related 17508 197.32 5310 | 246.34| 102.64 128.80 2074 | 113637 206039
equipment

Vehicles 332.78 21.02 104.17 - - 89.86 - 900.21 | 144804
Distribution 151.38 30.87 65.35 - 919 31.27 - 27870|  566.76
vessels

Others 4.50 343 1749 | 3505 7.74 2375 135.35 99.83| 32714
Total 663.80 592.83 51018 41485 35643 280.07 15609 312447 609872

The Foundation continues to invest in fixed assets to improve the infrastructure required to support the growth in
the coming years. These investments were due to the unstinted support from generous donors.

Cash and Bank Balances

The Foundation had total cash and bank balances of ¥ 22,862.15 lakhs as at 31 March, 2017, including

% 2,223.84 lakhs in Fixed Deposits with banks and housing financial institutions with original maturity of more
than 12 months, and the same has been disclosed in the financial statements under ‘other non-current assets’ (Ref
Schedule 2.11). Of the total cash and bank balances, the amounts held in the form of Fixed Deposits with banks
and housing financial institutions with original maturity of less than 12 months is ¥11,482.14 lakhs.

Refer to Schedule 2.31 of the Notes to Accounts about the earmarked funds of the Foundation. This consists of
funds contributed by donors towards Corpus, kitchen infrastructure and for other programmes aggregating to
37,432.39 lakhs. Interest earned on Corpus funds is utilised for specified programme purpose.

Receivables

The total receivable from the Government as at 31 March 2017,is% 3,120.97 lakhs (previous year:32,825.64
lakhs) including unbilled cash subsidy of ¥1,461.12 lakhs (previous year: ¥1,296.59 lakhs). The cash subsidy
income from Government and Government bodies increased by 15% during year while the outstanding
receivables increased by 10% as compared to previous year.

During the three months ended 30 June 2017, out of the above receivables, we have collected an amount of
31,659.98 lakhs and the balance will be collected in the coming months.

Your Foundation has provided for bad and doubtful Government Receivables of ¥150.74 lakhs during the year in
the financial statements. We are discussing with the government authorities for an amicable solution to resolve

the issue.




Management Discussion and Analysis Report analysing the current performance and detailing the
future plans of the organisation are presented in a previous section which forms part of this Annual
Report. (Refer Page Number 63 - 65)

During the year, the Foundation had received recognition from various quarters. These have been
separately covered in a section, which forms a part of the Annual Report.

The Foundation strives to ensure transparency in all spheres of the organisation.

All the Branches are subject to periodic internal audits. Two reputed Chartered Accountancy Firms
are appointed to carry out internal audits, one for northern region and another for southern region
branches. The Auditors’ reports is reviewed by the Audit Committee in its meetings.

M/sB SR & Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants, having Registration No. : 101248W/W-100022, are the
statutory auditors of the Foundation and they have audited the financial statements that have been
attached in the Annual Report and have expressed an unqualified report which does not call for any

further comments.

M/s KPMG are the independent auditors of the Foundation for the financial statements prepared

under International Financial Reporting Standards. They have audited the said financial statements and
have expressed an unqualified report, which does not call for any further comments.

The details of Governance Philosophy and Governance Model of the Foundation have been covered in
a separate section of this Annual Report (refer page 19-20).
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I BOARD OF TRUSTEES

(A) Composition of Board

The Foundation’s Board given below comprises of Eight Trustees, all having considerable experience in their
respective fields.

Held | Attended
Madhu Pandit Dasa 60 Male | Chairman M|55|onaryVo|unteer,The MENEE M/ 3 3
Akshaya Patra Foundation Governance
) Vice Missionary Volunteer, The
Chanchalapathi Dasa 54 Male Chairman Aliclya Paira Fouriion Management 3 2
. Missionary Volunteer, The Operations and
Jeigein Mo [Clshing Dee! | S biele Tiusiee Akshaya Patra Foundation | Project Management 9 2
. Missionary Volunteer, The Operations and
Reimenzede CoieaDass | 48 el e Akshaya Patra Foundation | Project Management € L
TV. Mohandas Pai 57 Male Trustee el Ma_mpal qubal Plemee/l=IR 3 3
Education Services Governance
Board Member & Head - Group Government
Abhay Jain 58 Male Trustee Corporate Affairs, Manipal Relations 3 2
Education & Medical Group
V. Balakrishnan 52 Male Trustee Founder & Chairman, Exfinity | Finance/Governance 3 2
Raj Kondur 45 Male Trustee CEO, Plank Labs Management 3

Table 5: Composition of the Board

The age of trustees is ason 1st Jul 2017
(A) Profile of the Board members
The detailed profile of Board Members is included separately in the section ‘Board of Trustees’ of this Annual Report.
(Refer page number 21-22)

(B) Other Information Regarding Board
Your Foundation’s Board of Trustees play a primary role in ensuring good governance and functioning of the
Foundation. The Board's roles, functions, responsibilities, and accountabilities are defined.

The Agenda and Notes are circulated to the Trustees in advance of each meeting of the Board of Trustees. Where it is
not practical to attach or send the relevant information as part of agenda papers, the same are tabled at the meeting
with presentations to the Board. The Members of the Board have complete freedom to express their opinion and the
decisions are taken after detailed discussions.

The Board periodically reviews the operations of the Foundation. The Foundation follows the discipline of submitting
the monthly financials to the Board of Trustees, providing them with updates on the performance of the Foundation and
other important matters. The Board also reviews the same and advices the management from time to time with their
feedbacks /inputs. Apart from the above, additional board meetings are convened by providing appropriate notice to
address the specific needs of the Foundation. The members do not take any sitting fees from the Foundation.

The Board of Trustees met three times during the year. The details of Board Meetings held during the
financial year 2016-17 are as under:

1 16-Jul-16 Bengaluru | 6
2 11-Dec-16

3 18-Mar-17
able 6: Particulars of Board meetings held

Bengaluru | 5

Bengaluru | 5
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However, the Financial statements prepared by the Foundation under IFRS are prepared in accordance with the

(A) Composition of Audit Committee International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, except
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" for such modifications as have been considered appropriate to reflect the objectives of the Foundation i.e., carrying
Your Foundation has an Audit Committee at the Board level, which acts as a link between the Management, the Statutory charitable activities with effective use of resources rather than making profits and maximisation of members’ wealth.

and Branch Auditors, and the Board of Trustees, and oversees the financial reporting process.
(C) Trustees’ Responsibility

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Your Trustees, based on the representations from the Operating Management, confirm that:
V. Balakrishnan, Chairman

Raj Kondur, Member a. Inthe preparation of annual accounts, accounting policies described in Note 1.2 to Schedule 1 to the Financial
Suresh Senapaty, Member statements prepared under the Indian GAAP have been followed and there are no material departures

b. They have, in selection of the accounting policies, consulted the statutory auditors and applied these policies
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and other senior officers of the Foundation are permanent invitees to consistently, making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the
the Audit Committee meetings. The internal auditors of the Foundation are invited to the Audit Committee meetings as state of affairs of the Foundation as at 31 March, 2017, and of the Income and Expenditure of the Foundation for the
necessary. year ended 31 March, 2017

c. They have taken proper and sufficient care, to the best of their knowledge and ability, for the maintenance of
Mr Senapaty was a former member of the Board and Chief Financial Officer of Wipro Ltd. He is the Chairman of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Foundation and for preventing and detecting fraud and
Honeywell Automation India Ltd and Member of the Board of various companies, listed and non-listed, including ITRAF other irregularities
(International Tax Research and Analysis Foundation). He is a member of many other committees including NACAS (till d. They have prepared the annual accounts on an on-going concern basis.

recently), SCODA and also member of the IFRS Global Advisory Board.
(D) Remuneration of Trustees

Aregular speaker at various seminars and forums, Mr Senapaty has won several awards and accolades to his credit,

most notable amongst them being the Best CFO award in 2002 by IMA (an associate of Economist Corporate Network) The trustees of the Foundation declare that they have not received any remuneration from the Foundation for the year
in association with American Express, the Best CFO award for IT/ITES sector by CNBC-TV 18, CFO Wall of Fame by 2016-17. They have not received any sitting fees from the Foundation for the Board meetings and Audit Committee
9dot9 Mediaworx (An Indian print media under 9dot? publications). meetings attended by them during the year.
(B) Meetings of Audit Committee The total amount spent for travel and other expense reimbursements is given in the below mentioned table:
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" Amount in%
During the year under review, the Audit Committee met four times to deliberate on various matters and the details of
the composition and attendance by the Committee members are as follows: -————
Held Attendad Table 7: Particulars of Audit Committee 2 Chanchalapathi Dasa 173513 140,641 314154
tt i
c enee meet'jgs neld ! 3 Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa 2,06,241 = 2,06,241
Balakrishnan V. 4 4 Note*: Mr Senapaty became the member of audit
. committee effective 16th July 2016, and after he joined, 4 Rathnangada Govinda Dasa 87,356 = 87,356
Suresh Senapaty (refer note™) 4 3

: . _ (E) Management
The Committee members do not take any sitting fees from the Foundation. T

) ' i) The Management Discussion and Analysis Report form part of the Annual Report.
(C) Charter of Audit Committee ii) No material transaction has been entered into by the Foundation with the Trustees or the Management, their

.................................................................. relatives etc. that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Foundation.
The detailed charter of the Audit Committee can be availed from the Foundation’s website www.akshayapatra.org

Your trustees express their deep appreciation for all the support and co-operation received from the Ministry of Human

_(._A..)_._B_é?.?i._s__QTB?_'?_F?@..E’_?_EFY_.T_@D.S_?EFIQD§__ Resource Development, Government of India, and all the State Governments during the year under review.

The Foundation places all the relevant details before the Audit Committee periodically. Considering the nature of the We are deeply indebted and grateful to all our donors (corporates, trusts, foundations and individuals) who have

organisation, as a Foundation, it has specifically identified the related parties, which are trusts or societies having one or generously contributed to our cause. Your efforts are the beacons with which we move from strength to strength.

more common trustees. Your motivation, dedication and your incessant support gives us impetus to ameliorate the cause of food for education.
Your trustees also wish to place on record their appreciation for the committed services done by the volunteers and

A comprehensive list of related parties and the transactions held with them forms part of the Note No. 2.26 (a) of employees of the Foundation.

Schedule 2 - Notes to accounts to the Accounts under Indian GAAP. These transactions are not likely to have any conflict

with the interests of the Foundation at large and have been valued at arm’s length. We will continue to be inspired by the vision that has been so far outlined and discussed, and we pray that we be given

multiple opportunities and avenues to serve the society at large and the stakeholders in specific.
(B) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

For and on behalf of the Board of Trustees
In the absence of any authoritative established accounting principles for the specialised aspects related to charitable

trusts which do not carry out any commercial activity, the Foundation has prepared the financial statements in accordance Chanchalapathi Dasa
to the significant accounting policies described in Note 1.2 to Schedule 1 to the Financial statements prepared under the Vice Chairman
Indian GAAP. Date: 7th July 2017
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'rn‘s D ‘ d
Driven by va
Born from a

GOOD GOVERNANCE FOR SUSTAINABILITY

sense of realisation akin to none, the responsibility

huge and challenging. Fostering an organisation to
feed 1.66 million children needs determination, integrity and
perseverance. An NGO, to embrace and deliver on the cause,
needs an approach to governance which assimilates passion for
the cause, proactive management, and sustainability.

To see asatisfied smile on the faces of childrenis a

The story of Akshaya Patra is one of humble beginnings, and
how with a strong sense of determination, unwavering support
from Government and donors, and immense dedication of
everyone involved, we have been able to reach out to 1.66
million children over the past 17 years.

With courage of conviction, an urge
(o serve, and a strong sense of faith,
we nurture the substance on which the
Foundation is based.

On the basis of our belief system and the essentials of good
ascendency, we have managed to come a long way. As we grow
from strength to strength, the basic tenets of sustainable
development have become our ally.

Good governance is the backbone for a well-balanced, adaptive
and progressive society or an organisation. It is imperative to
affirm an all-inclusive, all considerate leadership to establish
driven principles on which the foundation of a justifiable
structure can be built. It goes alongway in making an
organisation viable and sustainable.

Akshaya Patra is directed by its strong underpinning principles
of good governance. Our adherence to core philosophy

which rests on four basic tenets gives us the needed fillip to
sustain effective governance. Board accountability to the
Foundation and stakeholders is maintained through regular
Management Council meetings, Trustees meetings and Board
meetings. Equitable treatment of all stakeholders is adhered
to. We have also formed an Executive Council which meets
the Management on periodic basis to ensure that strategic
guidance and effective monitoring by the Board is efficiently
planned and executed. Publishing of the Annual Report ensures
transparency and timely disclosure.

In 2008, Akshaya Patra became the first NGO to comply with
the International Financials Reporting Standards (IFRS). In
2013, it was inducted into Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India’s (ICAl) Hall of Fame after winning ICAI's Gold Shield
Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting for five yearsin a
row.

We adhere to all the essential elements of

good governance giving rise to a structure
which is robust and competent and holds a
congruous value system. Through a constantly
evolving and efficient public service delivery,
we have gained more confidence in our
partnership with Governments, corporates

and individual donors, and all who are crucial

to the sustainability of the Foundation and
impact of the cause. For a successfully driven
organisation, itis important to establish a
process of decision-making and going further, to
ensure actions are taken based on the decisions
made.

Transparency on all fronts ensures a
framework of trust and ethics. To ascertain
compliance, internal review meetings are held
every quarter to discuss important subjects
and challenges, and to find resolutions.

The Foundation complies with the MOUs
entered with the State Governments and with
donors to maintain an efficient and sustained
relationship. We have associated with

NITI Aayog to share our thoughts on good
governance in the NGO space.

Over the years, we have understood the
importance of adhering to governance
philosophy which is based on a stringent

set of laws, rules and regulations and

worthy practices that enables us to perform
proficiently and ethically while creating value
for all our stakeholders.

Our commitment is in the
belief that adopting the best
governance practices will
consistently improve our
credibility and will take
us a long way in realising
our vision — No child in
India shall be deprived of

education because of hunger.

Our relentless pursuit to be an organisation
driven by excellence, has given us an
opportunity to be the torchbearers of change
in the society. It has given us an impetus to
alleviate the channels of change

for good.
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BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Maruth: Info-Tech Centre Telsphone +31 80 7134 7000
11-12/1 Inner Ring Road Fax +01 B0 7134 7999

WMW! India
Independent Auditors” Report
To the Board of Trustees of The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the attached balance sheet of The Akshaya Patra Foundation (“the Trust™) as at
31 March 2017 and the income and expenditure account of the Trust for the year ended, annexed
thereto. These financial statements are responsibility of Trust’s management. Our responsibility is 1o
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standard generally accepted in India. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform our audit 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evldenuewwmtm the amounts and disciosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis of our opinion.

We report that:

(1) we have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and
be:iefwm necessary for the mmofuw audit;

(b) in our opinion proper books of accounts have been kept by the Trust so far as appears from our
‘examination of those books;

¢} the balance sheet and income and expenditure account dealt with by this report are in agreement
‘with the books of accounts;

(d) as there are presently no authoritatively established accounting principles for the specialized
aspects related to charitable trusts not having any commercial activities, these financial
statements have been prepared on the. Imumf‘mMmg policies referved to in the Note | of
the financial statements, On this basis, in our opinien and 1o the best of our information, and
aceording to the explanations given 1o us, the said ancountsgl\‘etn.leand fair view
(i) in case of the balance sheet. of the state of affairs of the Trust as at 31 March 2017;

and
(if)  incase of income and expenditure account, of the excess of income over expenditure
for the year ended on that date.
Jor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accauntants
Firm registration number: 101248 W/W-100022

Parimer
Membership number: 205385

Date + 7 July 2017
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Balance Sheet as at
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES

Non-current Linbilities

Other long-term liahilities

Cmtn-hilﬂu
“Trade payables
thgremuiwhllnm
Short-lerm pmvﬁa_na

ASSETS

ﬂnnflmm
--'Tanghhmr;
ble asseis
W(al Mmm

Other non-current gssets

Current assets
Inventorics
Cash and bank balances

mmwmﬂmmc@wm
Undﬁmdummwmmmt

Cilier pufril e

Significant accounting policies

"The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of the financial statements

A per our report attached
Jor BS R& Co. LLP

F"_ n:gm-nmmm 101248WAV-100022

Ry in lakhs

31 March 2017 31 March 2015

15,413.63
44313
9.58235

2543911

3!&4
193,89

21553

1406.21
440037
265.65

607223

31,726.87

Jor and on belalf of the Board of Trustees of
The Akshuys Patra Foundation

pae: 07 JUL 2097
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Income and expenditure account for the year ended

lnoom Trom ‘donations
Grants and subsidy receivid from government

‘Non-cash ihmhmw:dﬁtmmmwdsfmlm,

Other income
TOTAL INCOME

Materials and utilities consumed

Personnel cost _

Depreciation | amortization

Rgm

MWW

Professional and consultancy charges

Travelling and conveyanee

Scholarship, mimmmm expenses
Other opernting expenses

“TOTAL EXPENSES

Excess of income over expenditure

Significant accounting policies

31 March 2007

924.03

29,563.39

14.445.14
6,615.29
2.610.09

980.03
1',3"54:3|
317.37
28275

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial satements

As per our repont attached
for BS R & Co. LLP
Firm registration no.: 101248 W/W-100022.

Supreet Sachdev
Partner
Membership No. 205385

—
Dete: 97 JUL 2007

far and on hehalf of the Board of Trustees of
The Akshaya Patra Foundation

D 07 JuL 20m

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
1. Significant accounting policies

L1

Organisation overview

The Akshaya Patra Foundation (‘the Trust’ or *TAPF’) is registered under Indian Trust Act

tBﬂuaWM%MthmlWMmdwmmmls
October 2001. The principal activity of the Trust is 10 implement the mid-day meal program
otﬁmwmnmwmwmmmmmm

‘government and municipal schools.

The Trust is also involved in various other charitable activitics such as providing subsidized
meals to daily wage eamers under various schemes like “Akshaya Kalewa Program”,
providing food for babies and mothers in Anganwadis and implementing various other
programs for the relief of the poor,

(]

mqmmqmmm-

mwmmmwmmmuuummmmmmm
historical cost convention and the accounting is on accrual basis. In the ahsence of any
authoritatively established accounting principles for the specialised aspects related to
chﬂnbhwmwhhhdnwtmommymmrﬂaﬂmmdwnsmhm
been prepared in accordance with wémﬁﬁmmﬁmpﬂwum
below. There are no cther trusts or entities over which TAPF exercises controlling

interest, thus there is no requirement of consolidating other entities into the TAPF's

financial statements,

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the significant
accounting policies requires that the Board of Trustees of the Trust (‘Trustees’) make
‘estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenditure
of the year and reported balances of assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ

from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively
in current and future periods.

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, less accumulated
depreciation. The cost of fixed assets includes the purchase cost of fixed assets and any.
other directly attributable costs of bringing the asseis to their working condition for the
intended use. Borrowing costs, if any, directly aitributable to acquisition or construction

of those fixed assets which ncoessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use are capitalised.

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets
uﬂnmuudﬂda;nalfhsmuﬂdwdmﬂm

Fixed assets received as donation in kind are measured and recognised at fair value on
the date of being ready for their intended use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets as at the balance sheet date are
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The Akshaya Paira Foundation
1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

fiv)  Depreciation E (vi)  Revenue recognition (continued)

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on a straight-line method basis over the
estimated useful life as follows:

Class of assets Estimated useful life in years

Buildings Is

Kitchen and related equipments :

Office and other equipments

Compuler equipments

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Distribution vessels

Intangible assets

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on leaschold improvements is provided over the
primary lease term or the useful life of assets, whichever is lower,

Depreciation is charged on a proportionale basis for all assets purchased and sold during
Individual low cost assets, acquired for less than Rs 5,000 (other than distribution
vessels), are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

hmnw comprises provisions and groceries which include food grains, dhal & pulses,
oils and ghee and other items like sparcs and fuel. Inventory is valucd at cost,
determined under the First-In-First-Out (F[FO}_mb!hﬁd

In case of Govemment grants of rice and wheat in kind, the inventory cost is
determined at the lower of the market price or government regulated price.

Cost of inventory, other than those received as government grants, comprises purchase
cost and all expenses incurred in bringing the inventory 1o its present location and
Invcunbribs received as donation in kind are measured at fair value on the date of

Revenue recognition

Donations received in cash, umerﬂlmﬂm&mewgd for depreciable fixed assets, are
recognised ﬁlnmwhen the donation is wed.éx«pt;udme!hcumm
uohdiihm mquircth.edcmmgm be utilised wuracarlmngtdoi Suﬁdnnaﬁ&nsare

'mhlymrﬂnwmafnsuﬁ,m:d:ﬁmﬁmm :

dl!closed a5 “Deferred donation — feeding™ under other current liabilities in the balance

LUP
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Danations received in Kind, other than those received for depreciable fixed asset are

measured at fair value on the date of receipt and recognised as income only upen their

ﬂﬂlmm Unutilised donations are deferred and disclosed as kind donations or grain
grants received in advance under other current liabilities in ﬂwbilmwsheet

Dmmmmﬁcwihupodﬁcdmmmmq:mnﬂnmpmufm corpus fund or
endowment fund of the Trust are classified as such, and are directly reflected as trust
fund receipts in the balance sheet.

Government grants related to subsidy received in cash or in kind are recognised as
|muimﬂnntligamuummedmmm=gmnismﬁmmdmdrtght 1o receive
money is established and reflected as receivables in the balance sheet. The value of
subsidies and donations received in kind is determined basad on the lower of market
wk:e or government regulated price of those goods at the time of receipt,

Donation received in cash towards depreciable fixed assets, the ownership of which lies
with the Trust, are treated as deferred donation income and recognized as donation
income on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset.

The deferred donations towards depreciable fixed assets (received bath in cash and in
k:nd),hmaﬁanuﬁcd as funds which provide long term benefits to ﬂw‘}‘mn. ‘are
Mwm:wmamm Balance Sheet.

Income from cultral events, if any, is recognised as and when such events are

Tncome from receipts for other programs is recognised when the associated obligation is

performed and right to receive money is established.

Interest on deployment of funds is recognised using the time-proportion method, based
on underlying interest rates.

;mm

The Trust is registered under Section 12A of the Income tax Act, 1961 (*the Act').

Umrthupmriﬂons of the Act, the income of the Trust Wﬁumpi from tax, subject to
the compliance of terms and conditions specified in the Act

Consequent 1o the insertion of tax Ihbilit_'.' on anonymous donations vide Finance Act
20&6 mrmﬁmmmmmmmmwmmummmmar
Section 115 BBC of the Act, if at all there are any such anonymous denations.

Foreign exchange transactions

Transaction: Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at a rate that approximates the

exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. The difference between the rate
at which fuu]’gn currency mmhns\au accounted and the rate at which they are
realized is recognized in the income and expenditure account,

Translation: Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are restated
u.tlhechsmzmm:rﬁsmcsarimgﬁcm Mmmentmmmrnthe'
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation
1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
I‘mvl;fmm recognised when, as a result of obligating events, there is a present

obligation that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be (xii) Leases.

made of the amount of obligation.

Contingent liability dmlesm is mad;whm,aummlt of obligating events, there is a
pussible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources.

mmwmmﬁwmdumuamuhnfmemmﬁa

wumwwmwawoﬂhuﬁmmmalﬂmlﬂmﬁmmtﬂmﬂ‘

rEsOurces is remate.

%) dmpairment of assets

The Trust periodically assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Trust estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. 1f such recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the
wryingmtﬁreduudmhmvmhle amount, The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is reco; in the income and expenditure account. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

Provideni fund

All cligible employees receive benefits from provident fund, which i a defined
namribmmphn. Both the employee and the Trust make monthly contribution 1o the
fund, which is equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s basic salary.
The Trust has no further obligations under this plan beyond its monthly contributions.
mmymmmwmm:mwmmmmwrm
“aceount.

Gf?ﬂﬂm‘y

The Trust provides gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan. 1o its eligible employees.
In accordance with the Payment of Gratwity Act, 1972, the gratuity plan provides
lump sum payment to the eligible employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s basic
mqmmuworwhmmwﬁmm Thegmgllah;lny&accmqﬂm
‘on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent
actuary.

Compensated absences

The employees of the Trust are entitled to compensated absences which are both
accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences is determined nmdvalmhw»hmdmﬂwaddiﬁmal
- amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated as
“at the Balance Sheet date. Ewnmmmmwmpmwmmh
mﬂﬁdhﬁemmmwhithmmwr

LLU!
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Assets acquired m»mmmmmmuy Bﬂﬂlﬁsmksmm

quwhm.mdmiﬂsiammsmmuwwﬂ@n; alised

inception of lease at lower of the fair value or present value of minimum leme

payments.

Assels acquired under lease where the significant portion of risks and rewards of
hip are retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease rentals are

cianivdh income and cxpenditure account on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation
2z Homgnmuwkkﬂh-wrumuthmhmi

The previous perind figures have been reprouped/reclassified, wherever necessary 1o conform to the current year's presentation,

Haiuh#hi

2.1 Trust fund l'lﬂip‘h
As at Az at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016,

i 15.206.65 1322812

Add: Corpus donations received during the year 1.484.04 1.978.53
Closing balance 16.690.69 15,206.65

Endowment fund
Endowment find 20698 190.44

Add: Endowment fund received during the year 14,59 16.54

Closing balance 221.57 206,98

Iﬁ!‘ll& 15413.65

2.2 Excess of income over expenditure _
Opening balance. a3 (1,239.52)
Add: Balwnce carried forwand during the year 1.460.08 1.682.65

Clidlig tiiate’ 1,903.21 443,13

2.3 Designated funds
Donations related to depreciable assets
- Denatien received in cash
- Dxmation received in kind

Closing balance

Thmwmntﬁrduinaﬂﬁadhuﬁﬂcm:

Gﬂwmﬂts
Rdﬂ\:imrnmr.y

2.5 Lang-term provisions.

Provisien for employes benefits.
mmﬂmﬁammm]

LLU!
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

2.Notes on aceounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)

2.7 Other current liabilities

Grain grant received in advance
msnwmmm lnwdnm

Gann'ibmnta.pmwdmanﬂ other funds
Other liabilities
Withholding and other tax payable.

2.8 Short-term provisions.

Provision ﬁr:nplwubwuﬂts
Compensated absences [refer note 2.28(¢)]

Asat
31 March 2017

2201

1,344.42.
22894

As.al

31 March 2016

733
1.099.47
209,41

1,595.37

1,406.21
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2 Nbes o0 secounti (e The year emded 31 March 2017 (conisniied)
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation
2.Notes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)

As at

2.10 Long term loans and advances 31 March 2017
Capital advances for purchase of fixed assets 155783
Tax deducted at source 121.78
Prepaid expenses 24 68
Electricity and other deposits ' 46.79
Rental deposits 188.25
‘Security deposits 21.03
Telephone deposits 1.80

Ry in lakhs
As at
31 March 2016

56.17
585
3918
140.25
17.09
1.73

1,963.06

(Capital advances for purchase of fixed assets S84

688.88

1,968.90°
Less: Provision for doubtful advances 5.84

1,963.06

2.11 Other non-current assets
Deposits with original maturity more than 12 months
it bk
- with financial institutions*

* Deposits with HDFC Lid & PNB Housing Finance Lid
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- 2.Notes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued) The Akshaya | Patra Foundation
M::hhﬂ.r ‘L.Notes on accounts for the vear ended 31 March 2017 (mﬁhud}

31 March 2016 _ I :_lr-!n lukis
31 March 2016

2.15 Unclaimed cash subsidy from Government

Gavernment of Kamataka
Government of Littar Pradesh
Government of Rajasthan
Government of Orissa.
Government of Gujarat
Government of Andhra Pradesh
Government of Telangana
Government of Chattisgarh
‘2.13 Cash and bank balances Government of Assam

Cash and cash equivalents :
Cash on hand . o 2,16 Short-term loan and advances

Cash in transit : R / AP0,
Balance with banks Unsecured, considered good
|nﬂ:ﬁgm 915524 5.665.85. Loans und advances w related partics.

In deposit accounts (with original maturity within 3 months)

Other balances Prépaid expenses
Deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 TS
months

- with banks )
- with financial instiwtions*

2,17 Other current assels

* Deposits with HDFC Lid & PN8 Housing Finance Lid Yo
zlimam sidy receivables from Government and sther bodies 5 Admmerm-mblu in cash or kind

Unsecured, considered good
Government of Kamataka
Government of Uttar Pradesh
Government of Rajasthan
Government of Orissa
Government of Gujirat
.(hvmmmnfhndhml'rm
Government of Telangana
Government of Chattisgarh
Government of Assam

Unsecured, considered dowbtfal
Doubtful cash subsidy receivable

Less: Provision for doubiful receivables from Government and others
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The Akshava Patra Foundation
2 Notes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (eontinued) R )
) - I o The Akshaya Patra Foundation
t:glr;:_;ii: ;ﬂtﬂ F;t; t;:x;;?i 2.Notes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)
Al % Rs in lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
ENES Income from domvua 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
mwﬂm India towards meals
#q:d\red in other countries towards meals '_ : i i
in kind - Ot 4R B Provisions, groceries cerie -and spares consumed 14,481.63 11:2,}99}29
Ot‘hu gt i ; Fuel . 2.050.97 1,665.15
) 363, Power and lighting 449.37 380.70

2.22 Materials and utlilities consumed

2,19 Grants and subsidy received from Government ) 16,981.97 14,445.14

A, Grant of food grains from ; —— Giiis 98 Patocinnl ot

91.06.
100,74 ] ‘Salaries, wages and bonus 6,193.98
10868 203, Contributions o provident and other funds 590,60
g Contract staff $84.00
et i Safwelfae 22285

5 Honorarium to administration volunteers 104,10

g’ig 30,19 Employee medical expenses 74.95

20
2,203 8,070.48 :

of 4.874.06 .56, 2.24 Other operating expenses
Govemment of Uttar Pradesh ol ' ' '

Government of Rajasthan 1,547, : o —
st ; i, ; Pmnwﬂ-au mﬁ;mm expenses ?:3;;

Government of Gujaral ey | : Tie AL .
Government ol Andhra Prudesh 343.63 '3 Pw'tms ik pstioniry 101.44
Government of Telangana 1.254.95 A412 Insurance 78.78
Government of Chattisgarh 269.70 256 Rates and taxes 7348
Government of Assam 302. -85 - i Office expenses 3003
15.814.21 ‘Courier and postage 46.54
— , ‘Statutory audit fees 18,69
18,017.41 ; 3 .%urm feﬁs s?“gs-
Bank charges 48.33

Loss on write off or sale of fixed assets, net 5
Income donations related to- iable 2,108.62 1,721 Provision for doubtful receivables from Government 150,74
g el s mentons . Provision for doubtful advances 5.84
Dot i i 4387 ; Write offi - government receivables 53.80
2,152.49 1,747, ‘Write offs - other receivables 112
77.22
1,319.26

2.20 Non-cash income from specific donations towards fixed assets

2.21 Other income

Profit on sale of fixed assets
haﬁﬁmm hmmmmm
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Schedules to the accounts

2. Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)

225 Capital Commitments and contingencies

_ Asst
31 March 2017

Estimated amount of conracis remaining to be 227292
executed on capital account and not provided for,
net of advances

Outstanding bank guarantee, in respect of the 078
guarantee given by bank in favour of others,
secured by equivalent fixed deposit with bank

The Trust has identified the following entities as related parties which are trusts or societies having
one or more of its trustees as the trustees of these entities and transactions with those related parties
have been disclosed below:

a.  Entities where significant influence exists:
International Society for Krishna Consciousness, Bangalore (“ISKCON™);
The Akshaya Patra. Foundation Inc, USA (“TAPF USA™);
The Akshaya Patra Foundation Inc, UK (“TAPF UK™);.
ISKCON Charities;
India Heritage Foundation (“1HF™);
Hare Krishna Movement (“HKM"); and
Touchstone Foundation

b, The following is a summary of significant transactions with entities where significant influence
exists.
Rs in Lakhs

For the year ended  For the year ended
 Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Income from cash donations received towards
mid-day meal feeding programme:

- TAPF USA

- TAPF UK

- HKM - Jaipur

- HKM — Guwahati

- HKM - Vizag

LLU!

NE

95

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Schedules to the accounts
2. Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)

226 Related party transactions (continued)

Ry in lakh

For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2017

For the year ended

31 March 2016

Income from cash donations received towards
Fixed assets:

- ISKCON _

- TAPF USA

Income from cash donations received towards

-TAPF UK
- TAPF USA

Rental Income
- HKM Jaipur
- Touchstone Foundation

Rent and other expenses paid
-ISKCON

- HKM- Vrindavan

- HKM- Ahmedabad

Expendiure incurred on behalf of te Trust
- ISKCON

- HKM - Vrindavan

-HKM—Hubli

- Touchstone Foundation

- HKM - Ahmedabad

Expenditure incurred by the Trust on behalf of
related parties:
- ISKCON
- HKM = Vrindavan
- HKM — Hubli
- HKM = Jaipur
- HKM — Ahmedabad
- Tauchsban: Fuundamﬂ
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Schedules to the accounts

2. Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)

2.26

Related party transactions (continued)
A O O N T R e

Rs in Lakhs

o Asat
Particulars : 31 March 17

As at
31 March 16

Sundry creditors for expenses: a5
~ISKCON 19.61
- Touchstone Foundation 240

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
- HKM- Hubli
- Touchstone Foundation

733

The Trust has offices, kitchen facilities and vehicles under cancellable operating lease
agreements. memmww&mmnmmmwameafm
business. Total rental expenses under cancellable operating leases for the year ended

31 March 2017 is Rs.1,094.48 lakhs (Previous year Rs.980.03 lakhs)

228  Employee benefit plans
a.  Defined contribution plans

Total contribution made by the Trust during the year towards provident fund and employee's
state insurance. defined mmumm;smmmmﬁmmmm 489,23 Lakhs).

b. Gratuity — Defined benefit plan
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit

obligation:

Rs in Lakks

Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2017

Year ended

31 March 2016

Obligations a period beginning e
Service cost i
Interest cost 3391

Benefits settled (48.08)

Actuarial (gain) / loss 56.05

340,02
97.49
25.08
(29.50)
30.75

Obligations at period end _ 629.58

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Schedules to the accounts
2. Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 201 7 (continued)

2.28 Employee benefit plans (continued)

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2016

Change in plan assets:

Plans assets at beginning of the period, at fair
value

Expected return on plan assels.

Actuarial gain / (loss)

Contributions

Benefits settled

269.95
17.18
(0.03)
2255
(48.08)

Plans assets at end of the period, at fair
value

261.57

100% of plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

Rs in Lakhs

As at

31 March 2017

. asat
31 March 2016

Present value of the defined benefit obligations
at the end of the period
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period

629.58
261.57

463.84
269.95

Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Asset mﬂ?ﬂmﬂ mized in the balance sheet

368.01

193.89

Gratuity cost for the year:

R in Lakhs

Year ended

31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2016

‘Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial loss

123.86
3391

(17.18)
36.05

97.49
25.08
(18.66)
10.81

Net gratuity cost

156.64

114.72

Actual return plan assets

17.13

38.61

Estimated rzze of return on plan asseis




The Akshaya Patra Foundarion

Schedules to the accounts

2. Notes ta accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)

228  Employee benefit plans (continued)

“The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of
‘inflation, ﬁu.':niufﬂ.j!1k promotion and other refevant factors suﬁh as supply and demand factors in

the employment market.

With effect from TApril 2009, the Trust has provided for compensated absences for all
‘employees who have worked for 240 days or more and who continue 1o be on rolls as at the end
of each financial year. The liability has been computed on an actuarial basis on the gross wages
for the annual leave. da;y balance available as on the M|@Mm The !zablhty as at 31 March

2017 is Rs 294.62 lakhs (Previous year Rs 265.65 lakhs).

2.29 Farnings and expenditure in foreign currency (om receipt and payment basis)

(a) Earnings :

The il\ksl‘la':m Patra Foundation
Schedules to the accounts

2. Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)

2.31 Fixed deposits include donations received towards:

Ry in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2016

Endowment Fund - 23332
Lien on Bank Guarantee 9.78
Reserve Fund, Kitchen Infrastructure & Quality 2.159.68
Initiatives o o e2 197,00
Carpus Fund, Drinking Water & Health Programs 5.272.71

206.97
6.18
3,044.19
5.366.33

2.32 Travelling and conveyance incurred towards:

Ry in Lakhs

Year ended
Ry in Lakhs 31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2017

- Year ended
31 March 2016

Lk i arioia 16.03
Year ended &In; Ira
31 March 2016

Denations received towards fixed assets.
Donation received towards meals.
Donation received towards other projects

3.651.07
1.234.23

r ;8:]' y

43.41

58.29
58.76

1.405.94 202.5

Total earnings

7,291.97

190.46

6,587.64

() Expenditure :

for BS R& Co. LLP i _ 3
Chartered Accountants The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Rs in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 2017

Firm registration no.: 101248W/W-100022
31 March 2016

Trustees” travel

Employees’ travel
flelqaale.s-fﬁmsu[tams‘ travel
Professional and consuitancy charges

2.65
1146

1.80
976

1.26

53._“ Partner Chairman Trustee
i Membership No. 205385

Total expenditure

25.67

Place: Bangalore

230 CIF Value of imports

Date: {7 JUL 2017

Date: 7 JUL 2017

Rs in Lakhs

Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2016

LED Display Board

9.12

LLUMINE 99

for and on behal[ of the Board of Trustees of

z .' - : I | '. 3 '.‘ Lz aiies S va ﬁ"h
36.33 o Es

V Balakrishnan




BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Maruthi Info-Tech Centre Telephone 81 80 7134 The Akshaya Patra Foundation
120 lm;ar Ring Road Fax +91 80 ?mﬁ% ' e

mmmm 071 india ) Receipts and payments account

Rs in lakhs
_ - Year ended Year ended
Independent Auditors’ Report Schedule 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
To the Board of Trustees of The Akshaya Patra Foundation R
- Opening balance . o
We have audited the attached receipt and payments account of The Akshaya Patra Foundation (“the Cash 018 0.80
Trust") for the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017, signed by us under reference to this report, Bank ) 17,591.39 12,108.44

with the books and record maintained by the Trust and the information and explanations given to us 17,591.57 12.109.24
and we confirm that the said statement is in accordance therewith. Add : Receipts - o

Donations A 21,527.61 17.149.90
ﬁrBSR&Cu.LLP Cash subsidies from government B rs,s:wm 13.061.80
Other receipts ' c 1.169.51 833.30

F‘ 48W/W-1 Sale of fixed assets o} 4&&6 2482
56,222.23 43,179.06

Partner ' Purchase of fixed assets ] 5,923, 3,048.94
Membership number: 205385 Loans and advances - B! 30.73
Utilisation of materials and other utilities 143443 11.927.99
Place: Bengaluru Personnel cost ; 7,722 6.404.20
Date : 7 July 2017 General expenses 5,234, 417365
Tax deducted at source ; 65.62 1.98

Closing balance 22,862.15 17,591.57

Represented by

Cash 0.93 0418

Bank 22.861.22 17.591.39
22.862.15 17.591.57

- Jor and on behalf of the Board of Trustees of
Jfor BS R & Co. LLP The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Chartered Accountants '
Fig B.ggimim No.: F 01248 W/W-100022

Membership No. 205385

M B E]III"E

B Hmbmhmm f o«;@n.'
? Hogstraton M mmm: ?ﬁ%‘w
ﬁm frort October 14 2013 :
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T'hnawaﬁ&iw_n
Schedules to the receints and payments account

Year ended
31 March 17
Receipts: :
Schedule A - Donations
Donarian tawards revenue expenditure
mﬁivﬁmlndm towards meals
- reccived from mmumm towards meals
-mmﬁm«ﬁ
Changes in G&ﬁmﬁd income from donations
- mim;owmﬁs mﬁah
- received mwﬁswmarkad donations -others

Ry in lukhs
Year ended

31 March 16

rmrmmn miwmmmmm& a}l

Change in corpus fund receipts
Change in endownment fund receipts.

Total donutions received towards carpus / endowment funds (i)

- received in India towards fived assers

- received in other countries towards fixed assets.
‘Change in deferred income from donations

- received towards fixed assets

Total donation received towards capital expendinure (iif)

Total donation received ( i + ii + ii)

Schedule B - Cash subsidies from Government and Government
bodies
Cash subsidies from Government and Government bodies 15.814.22
‘Change in cash subsidies receivable from Government and Government (144.39)
Change in cash subsidies from Government and Government bodies 913
received in advance —_
Change in ather receivable 78.12)
Provision written back {150.74)

15.537.90

Schedule C - Other receipts

Interest received $49.28
Mis:ellmag_:mr‘mmg 36620
‘Change in interest accrued and not due {45.97)

116951

‘Schedule ¥ - Sale of fixed assets
Book value of assets sold. net )
(Loss} / profit on sale or write-ofl of fixed assets, net

ILLUMINE 103

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Schedules to the receipts and payments account {continued)

Paarsmﬂs

Schedule E - Purchase of fixed assets
Additiens as per bulance sheet

Change in sundry creditors for capital goods
Chﬂﬂl,e mn mmmmpmhk-.
Creditors write back

Change in capital work in progress
Change in capital advances

Schedule F - Loans and advances
Change in salary advances
Change in deposits

Schedule G - Utilisation of material and ather utilities
Ooiutmnrlion of materials and wtilities as per income and expenditure

chxgemgamnffbodmmammtandmmmm
received madvmu

Gra.utsuﬂ'&d g‘ninsfrmi Oo\fegmlm:tand Government bodies
Ww&amyuab‘ﬁw
mw:nWﬂnﬂmmmhahmﬁﬁ

Schedule H - Personnel Cost

Persmnel cost as per the income and expenditure account
m;m-:sims

Gluﬂﬁﬂ-fn-acm alaries

Schedule 1 - General expenses

Other aperating expenses s per income and expenditure acoount
Change in prepaid expenses '

Change in provisions

Change in advance recoverable in cash or kind

Seltﬂl-h.] - Tax deducted at source

Year ended
31 March 17

3.903.43
(169,98}
70.47
(20.71)
(49.43)
1.060.25
1,129.22

592325

9.63

S

16.981.98
(69.42)
(12251
(15.58)
78.28
{2.203.20)

(3597
9.79)

{259.63)

14.445.14
21256
-;us %3)

m»_é!
@
(34.83)

27.06
223152

14.344.36

11,927.99

8,070.48
(203.09)
(143.36)

661529
(145.81)
(65.28)

7,722.03

5,308.04
30,36
{150.74)
47.01

4,003 79
1229

5.234.67

H5.62

65.62
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Independent Auditors” Report

The Board of Trustees
The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Akshaya Patra Foundation (“the Trust”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2017, and the statements of operations and other
comprehensive income, changes in Trust funds and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Trust as at March 31, 2017, and of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board except for the modifications considered appropriate to reflect the objectives of the Trust
i.e. carrying out charitable activities with effective use of resources rather than making profits and
maximisation of members’ wealth, as reflected in the significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board of Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accoumtants (IESBA
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Trustees for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as issued by International Accounting
Standards Board, except for such modifications as are considered appropriate to reflect the objectives of
the Trust i.e. carrying out charitable activities with effective use of resources rather than making profits
and maximisation of members’ wealth (refer to note 1.2, Basis of preparation of financial statemems, in
significant accounting policies), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability 1o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or 1o cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Trustees are responsible for overseeing the Trustee’s lnancial reporting process

EPAAG, o Indan partneesni and B mamibas o of e
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Auditors” Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when il exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expreéssing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control,

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management™s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors” report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
reporl. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Trust lo cease to continue as a going
congern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

August 30, 2017

Bangalore, India
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

The Akshaya Patra Foundation e T g =
Statement of Operations and Other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31,
Rs in lakhs

Balanee Sheet as at March 31, | Rs in lak o s

ASSETS Income from donations 15,672.38 12,113.39

Non-current assets Income from grants from governments and government bodies 18,017.41 16,525.97
Property, plant and equipment 12,826.66 9.911.43 Total income 33,689.79 28,639.36
Income tax assets 121.78 56.17 s }

Other non-current assets 2,507.29 5.543.99 penditure : R -

K jan-current assets ' P =11 &0 ‘Materials and utilities consumed 16,981.97 14,445.14
Total non-current assets 15,455.73 15,511.59 o " 80141 6.605.13
Depreciation 31 34.98 2,610.09

lventonss. 70110 770.52 Other operating expenses 5,308.05 4,210.22
Cashwlmdms receivable from government and government bodies 1,449.93 1,469.87 Total expenditure ' 33;45511 ﬁﬁ?ﬂ»ﬂ-
Unclaimed cash subsidy 1,461.12 1,206.59 Net surplus before other income. 230.38 768.78
Prepayments and other assets G18.86 426.61 Other income 1,285.77 924.03
Cash and cash equivalents 9,156.17 5,666.03 Surplus before income taxes 1,516.15 1,692.81
Deposits with banks and others 11,482.14 6,585.65 Income tax expense =

‘Total current assets 24,869.32 16,215.27 Net surplus 1,516.15 1,692.81

Total - 05 26.86 .
‘otal assets 40,325.05 31,726.86 Other comprehensive income
) B s Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
LIABILITIES AND TRUST FUNDS
it ites Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset). net of tax
Employee benefit n-b!:gamns 368.01 193.89
Other non-current liaﬁlhﬁes ; 394.43 21.64 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Total non-current liabilities 762.44 215.53 )

Cnrnnt meu

o Total other comprehensive income, net of tax
Current liabili

Payables 1,595.37 1,406.21 Total comprehensive income
Other current liabilities 806.34 615.42 '
Employee benefit obligations 294.62 265.65

Total current liabilities 2,696.33 2,287.28

T@nl_ liabilities 3,458.77 2,502.81

Gmm] fund 1,966.07 438.34
Other comprehensive income (62.87) 4.78
18,593.89 15,649.77

Restricted fund
Endmwm fund 221.57 206.98
ignated fund 11,623.59 7,971.53
Meal fund 6,427.24 5,389.76
_ 18,272.40 13,574.27
Total trust funds 36,866.29 29,224.05

Tatal liabilities and trust funds 40,325.05 31,726.86
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“The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Statement of changes in Trust Funds

et chefirved benefit lahilityiisser)

h 2017
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,
Particulars

Denations towards mid-day meal fund
Cash subsidies from government and government bodies

Nummm Inm:ﬂwv#h

Cash flows from ﬁnlm:lug activities

Advaics secelved from Goreminant
Net cash from financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period

LLU
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NATH ASSOCIATES 433/C, 5™ Cross, 7 Block West
Chartered Accountants - Jayanagar, BANGALORE 560082
Ph.26765764 /26769967/9880895018~ BSManjunath FCA

Ph. 2’5?35?54 ,'226#85344 /9902971527 BNSudheendra FCA

ail.com : bnsudheendra@gmail.com

We have audited the accounts of THE AKSHAYA FATRA FOUNDATION,
HK Hills, Chord Road, Rajaji Nagar, 1 Block, BANGALORE 560010,
(a registered charitable Trust and having FCRA Registration No.094421037 &

PAN AAATT6468P) for the year ending the 31st March 2017 and examined all

relevant books and vouchers and certify that they are according to the audited

accounts:

(i) the brought forward foreign contribution at the beginning of the year was
Rs. 39,81,47,465.

(i1) foreign contribution worth Rs. 72,91,97,726 and Bank Interest amounting to
Rs 2,01,36,145 vide Annexure 1 was received by the Trust/ Association during the
year ended 31t March 2017,

(iii) the balance of unutilised foreign contribution with the Foundation at the
end of the year was Rs. 56,59,04,850 (SB Rs. 12,19,97,336 + Fixed Deposits
Rs. 44,39,07,514) vide Annexure 2 (a) & (b).

(iv) Certified that the Foundation has maintained the accounts of foreign

contribution and records relating thereto in the manner specified in section 19

of the Foreign Contribution (Regulation) Act, 2010 (42 of 2010) read with rule 5
& rule 11 of the Foreign Contribution (Regulation) Rules, 2011.

(v) The information in this certificate and in the enclosed Balance Sheet and
statement of Receipt and Payment read along with the Audit Notes, is correct as
checked by us.

" For NATH ASSOCIATES,
Chartered ﬁ.ccnuntﬂnts,

Membership No F 09743
Signature of Chartered Accountant.
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NATH ASSOIATES. Chartered Atcountants.

Amount in Rs.

I95.E13,582 |

355159441

154423

6.95,05,630

729,197,726

Branch

Amount in Rs.

Bangalare

3.43,60,570

latpur

-3,99.480

110,270

Ahmedabad

10583801

Lucknow

12,75,600

37144834

136656

32547405

3136662

12,19.97,336

Amount of Deposit
@s)

2448231

5749634

79,11,570

326986

290,125

2,00,00,000

_2,00.00.000

3,30.000

96,00,000

9400000 | -




Amount of Deposit
Bank Typeolfdfc Branch (Rs.)

Yes Bank FCRA Mallewarain 98,010,000
Yes Bank FCRA Malleswaram G6,00,000
Yes Bank FCRA Malleswaram 98,00,000
Yes Bank FCRA Malleswaram 94, 00,000
Yes Bank FCRA Malleswaram 95,00,000
Kotak FCRA Malemmresy 94,00,000
Kotak FCRA Mleswanen 96,00,000
Katalk FCRA Malisswiinaan 95,00,000
Bank of Baroda FCRA Rajajinapar 50.00,000
Banlk of Baroda FCRA Rajajinagar 50,00,000
Bank of Baroda FCRA Rajajinagar 50.00.000
Bank of Baroda FCRA Rajajinagar 54,00,000
Vijaya Bank FCRA Yeshwantpur 949.,00,000
Union Bank FCRA Richmond Town 1.07.16,078
Syndicate Bank FCRA Shankarnagar APMC yard 49.00,000
Bank of Baroda FCRA Rajajinagar 99,00,000
Bank of Baroda FCRA Rajajinagar 50,00,000
HBank of Baroda FCRA Rajajinagar 50,00,000
Axis Bank FCRA Rajajinagar 2,50,00.000
Axis Bank FCRA Rajajinagar 2,50,00,000
Axis Bank FCRA Rajajinagar 10,00,00,000
Katak FCRA Malleswaram 98,00,000
Kotak FCRA Malleswaram S96,00.000
Axis Bank Sub FCRA Ahmedabad 7L.46,684
Axis Bank Sub FCRA Jaipur 2503719
Axis Bank Sub FCRA Jaipur 2655471
Axis Bank Sub FCRA Jaipur 50,03,629
Axis Bank Sub FCRA Jalpur 498,043
Axis Bank Sub FCRA Jaipur 600,052
Axis Bank Sub FCRA [aipur 4,55.062
Axis Bank Suby FCRA Jaipur 823,112
Axis Bank Sub FCRA Jaipur 50.03.495
Axis Bank Sub FCRA Jaipur 2745623

Tatal 44,39,07,514

Place: Bangalore

215t August 2017

For NATH ASSOCIATES,

Chartered Accountk uls-'.(/

ICAI -FRN 024265
& .

-

B S MANJUN . Partner
Membership No F 09743,

Signature of Chartered Accountant

ILLUMINE 113

THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION
H.K Hill, Chord Road, Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560 010
FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION

Receipts & Payments as at 31st March 2017

FCRA Registration Mo: 094421037

Amount Bs in Lakhs

Schedule 31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
Opening Balance .
Investment in fixed deposit 2,309.35 767.96
Balance with Bank 1,672.12 372.04
3,981.47 1,140.00
Add : Receipts
Donations received into
Foreign Contribution Remittance Account during the year A 7,291.98 6,644.71
Interest on FD and SB 201.36 86.31
11,474.81 7.871.02
Less : Payments
Welfare of Children :
Utilisation of materials and other utilities B 1,221.84 795.22
Personnel Cost | & 1,325.94 1,442.01
General Expenses D 1.537.41 1,230.73
Loans and advances E 239 5.02
Income taxes paid F 0.01 0.06
Purchase of fixed assets G 1,728.17 416,51
5.815.76 3,889.55
Closing Balance 5,659.05 3.981.47
Represented By
Investment in fixed deposit 4,439.08 2,309.35
Balance with Bank 1,219.97 1,672.12
5.659.05 3.981.47

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Receipts & Payments Account

As per our audit report of even date.
Jfor Nath Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registratjon NWS

Membership No. F9743

Place : Bangalore
Date : 21st August 2017

Madhu Pandit Dasa
Chairman

Place : Bangalore
Date : 21st August 2017

Jfor The Akshaya Patra Foundation
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THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION
H.K Hill, Mmmujm Bangalore - 560 010 FCRA Registration No: 094421037 THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION - _
FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION H.K Hill, Chord Road, Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560 010 FCRA Registration No: 094421037
_ o FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION
Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2017 - )
: Amount Rs in Lakhs Statement of Income and Expenditure -F C R Account - for the year ending 31 Mar 2017
Schedule 31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016 ik

‘Sources of Funds Schedule 31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016

4,087.15 3,136.79
1,241.70 563.20 5,663.11 6,343.10
4,539.93 3,510.53 229.29 99.26

- 5.892.40 644236

9.868.78 7,210.52

6,517.40 6,100.89 Materials and utilities consumed 1,221.84 795.22
1,728.17 416.51 Personnel cost ] 1,325.94 1,442.01
8,245.57 6,517.40 Depmﬁmanﬂmmﬂnﬁun 777.81 677 22
4,158.42 3,380.61 Other operating expenses 337 1,230.73
4,087.15 3,136.79 4,863.00 4,145.18

122.58 92.26 Excess of income over expenditure 1,029.40 12,297.18

4.-4;;9:0# 2,309 .35' Balance in income and expenditure account brought forward -3_,5 10.53 1,2] 13.;5
1,219.97 1,672.12 Balance carried forward 4,539.93 3,510.53

9,868.78 7,210.52

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Income & Expenditure Account.

“The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the balance sheet Axpuuurauditmpmofmn-m.

.Mp&mmﬂﬁmyﬁi«ﬁr&um

mmmshapmm’.a 7 - Date : msmmstzm

Place : Bangalore
Date : 21st August 2017
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Schedules to the Accounts

* Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

S1-Mar-17
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b
Wisdom guides us to progress
The Akshaya Patra Foundation As we listen to advices from experience
3 -
ikciniie i ibennnii _ . Our work defines our purpose
e R ‘Mc‘ initiate change to make a difference
As at !
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 )
Schedule H - Loans and advances .
Deposits 58.56 54.08
Interest accrued but not due 32.16 24.23
Salary advances 0.08 2.17
Advance Taxes 11.78 11.78
122.58 92,26
Schedule I - Materials and utilities consumed
Provisions and grocerics 1,098.39 694.23
Fuel 1L70 89.01
Power, Lightning and Water 11.75 11.98
1,221.84 795.22
Schedule J - Personnel cost
Salaries and wages 1.252.64 1,314.73
Staff welfare 34.29 65.47
Contract Staff cost 33.67 61.08
Volunteers expenses 5.34 0.73
1,325.94 1,442.01
Schedule K - Other operating expenses
Repairs & Maintenance 288.12 236.53
Rent 268.79 199.92
Security charges 59.98 81.99
Printing & Stationery 59.51 26.28
Courier & Postage Charges 29.01 23.76
Professional Charges 136.78 185.89
Audit Fees 57.89 68.52
Rates & Taxes 0.83 53.97
Insurance 47.23 47.49
Travelling & Conveyance expenses 112.50 90.53
Communication Expenses 30.97 14.98
Promotion & Inaugaration expenses 22349 117.21
Office Expenses 25.46 3.94
Scholarship and training expenses 44.42 41.97
Interest & Bank Charges 2.81 111
Other expenses 149.62 36.64
1,537.41 1,230.73
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MANAGEMENT MESSAGE With a promise of safety and tas

Each vessel leaves our gate
To reach the children on time
Before hunger catches them

ver the last 17 years, there has been a conscious effort to grow into an organisation that can be a

beacon of hope for a developing society. We have strived to inculcate an exemplary way of working to

reach more and more children. This will go a long way in fulfilling our vision of ‘No child shall be deprived
of education because of hunger.

Throughout the years, we have had the good fortune of building strong pillars which have been seminal in our
growth. Financial Transparency, Public-Private Partnership, our kitchen operations and financial transparency
have been at the core of our organisation’s growth.

The unceasing commitment from people of all walks of life also forms a part of our puissance. From feeding 1500
childrenin 2000 to 1.6 million now, the Foundation has grown exponentially and continues to do so, with your
ardent support. We appreciate and value your trust in us.

This annual report is not just an account of everything that has happened last year, but is a clear demonstration
of how the pillars, our building blocks have played a vital role in sustainability of Akshaya Patra- an organisation
that is passionate about its cause.

Itis heartening to see the determination of each and every individual associated with us to take our mission
forward. It is this commitment along with the workings of the organisation that makes every school day a smiling
one for the children. Reaching 5 million children by 2020 is possible only with your continued support.




“ Tata Trusts is pleased to partner with “ Akshaya Patra is a success

The Akshaya Patra Foundation on story of hope, faimess, ustice “Akshaya Patra has been very dear to “ We take pride in associatinlg vv‘ith
several inftiatives that collectively help and opportunity for all olRimosyslrotnGatoniand|petsonaly fic Akshaya jel Eoundghon g
fight criical issues such as hunger children to me and Mr l\/lurty because they are Settmg up a centralized kitchen in
ond ralnutiton i 2 sustainable b feeding people (children) 5y Narsing, Hyderabad, to extend a
manner. These include collaborating N.R. Naravana Murt ?ﬁ'ggghhﬁg tz&zzrzﬁ?oagmrgg
on implementing Mid-day Meal " J J Mrs Sudha Murty TS ’

able to strengthen our objective of
eliminating malnutrition among them
and encourage young minds to

focus on education. This is a part of
our initiatives that the MUFG Group
Ratan Tata organizes all over the world to support
Chairman Emeritus, Tata Group the communities where we work , ,

Scheme in India and running Lot i Lt f7y .
community kitchen in earthquake et e
affected regions in Nepal. ,,

Mr. Ryoichi Shinke

Regional Executive
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
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I AKSHAYA PATRA NETWORK

State Name of Unit President | Branch Address Branch Auditors
Plot 57&58, B-Block, Auto Nagar, Brahmayya & Co.
ANDHRA X .
Vishakapatnam Vishakapatnam - 530012 Bengaluru
PRADESH
Andhra Pradesh
Niskinchana Bhakta Dasa
C/o Josep primary muncipal School,
Kakinada Cheedilapura, Rama Rao Peta, E;anh?liyrﬁa &Co.
Kakinada 533004. Andhra Pradesh g
Ground Floor, Plot No : 24, D.
. .. No: 40-9-89, Sai Nagar, Near Brahmayya & Co.
Maha Vishnu Dasa Mangalagiri Benz Circle, Vijayawada - 520010. Bengaluru
Andhra Pradesh, India.
Village Numalijula, Mouza Sila, .
ASSAM Janardhana Dasa Guwahati Siduri Gopha, N.H - 31, Amingaon, Z%ﬁ%ﬁlﬁ:[ﬁﬁ:fa
Guwahati - 781031, Assam :
- Old Dairy Building Behind Gurudwara Sector - 6, S.S Kothari Mehta
CHHATTISGARH | Vyomapada Dasa Bhilai Bhilai - 490006, Chhattisgarh & Co. New Delhi
Plot No 42 Opp. To Sevashram Society, .
GUJARAT Vadodara Nr. Dharampura, Harinagar Gotri Road, ZSC}ZOIEIZ?:&T:F
Vadodara-390023, Guijarat. :
Plot No.55, Bhagyodaya Industrial Road, Behind D
. Surat R World Mall, Near Saptarshi Row House, Aai Mata | S.S Kothari Mehta
Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa Chowk, Magob to Dumbhal Road, Surat-395010, | & Co.New Delhi
Gujarat.
The Akshaya Patra Foundation,
Ahmedabad Bhadaj-Santej Road, Opp. Ahmedabad Dental S.S Kothari Mehta
College, Santej Village Kalol, Ahmedabad, & Co. New Delhi
Gujarat 390060
KARNATAKA Bengaluru - H.K Hil Hare Krishna Hill, W.O.C Road Rajajinagar, Brahmayya & Co,

Bengaluru - 560 010, Karnataka

Bengaluru

Old Govt. Women's College, Grand Road, Balagandi, | >~ otari Mehta
. ovt. Women'’s College, Grand Road, Balagandi, .
ODISHA Puri Dist. Puri, Pin No: 752001 & Co. New Delhi
Rourkela Sector - 7, Ispat High School Building, Rourkela, Dist. | S.S Kothari Mehta
Sundergarh, Odisha - 769003 & Co. New Delhi
Achyutha Krishna Dasa .
. S.S Kothari Mehta
Nayagarh Bhapur Block Nayagarh - 752063, Odisha & Co. New Delhi
Bhubaneswar Plot No. 1192/1727, Mouza, Nuahat, Bamphakuda, | S.S Kothari Mehta
Phulnakhara, Cuttack District - 754001 & Co. New Delhi
. Cé6 - C 11, Mahal Yojna, Goner Road, Jagatpura, S.S Kothari Mehta
RAJASTHAN Jaipur Jaipur, Rajasthan - 302025 & Co. New Delhi
Aimer Near GUPS, frazor Road, Topdara, S.S Kothari Mehta
J Ajmer, Rajasthan - 305001 & Co. New Delhi
Gram Sevak Prashikshan Kendra, Opp. to NLU, .
Jodhpur Near Railway Crossing, Nagour Road, Mandoor, 5.5 Kothari Meh_ta
Jodh 303004 & Co. New Delhi
Achyutha Krishna Dasa odhpur -
Baran Irrigation Colony, Sichai Vibhag, S.S Kothari Mehta
Bhanwargarh, Rajasthan, Baran - 325216 & Co. New Delhi
Nathdwara Ganesh Tekri Road, Tahsil, Nathdwara - 313301 S.S Kothari Mehta
Dist Rajasmand, Rajasthan & Co. New Delhi
. . 63, Devendra Nagar, 1st Seaward Road, Valmiki
TAMILNADU Stoka Krishna Dasa Chennai Nagar, Thiruvanmiyur- 600041 Chennai, Tamil Nadu NA
#12, Phase-3, Near ESI Hospital, IDA, Patancheru,
TELANGANA Hyderabad Hyderabad, Pin - 502319, Telangana Brahmayya & Co,
Satya Gaura Chandra Dasa
Sy no.172, Sri Krishna Goseva Mandal,
Narsingi Kokapet Road, Narsingi Village,
Hyderabad-500075
UTTAR Khas't.'a.No. 2811, AmaL§5| Inc'lustrlal Area, ) S.S Kothari Mehta
Lucknow Sarojininagar, Near Indian Oil Plant, Amausi, X
PRADESH Luck 526008, Uttar Pradesh & Co. New Delhi
Suvyakta Narasimha Dasa ucknow - , Jttar Fradesn.
Vrindavan Gopal Garh, Chhatikara Road Vrindavan, Mathura S.S Kothari Mehta
District-281121, Uttar Pradesh & Co. New Delhi
No - 102/1, Anmol Nagar, Ward no - 21, Wathoda S.S Kothari Mehta
MAHARASHTRA | Vyomapada Dasa Nagpur Square, Nagpur, Maharashtra - 440008 & Co. New Delhi
Amitasana Dasa Thane Old TMC School #133 Vasanth Vihar,
Near Pawar Nagar Bus Depot Thane (W)

) Bengaluru - 8th Mile, Doddakallasandra Village, Vasanthapura | Brahmayya & Co,
Chanchalapathi Dasa Vasanthapura Kanakapura Road, Bengaluru - 560 062,Karnataka | Bengaluru
Sandur Bellary Road, Shankar Brahmayva & Co
Ballari Gudda Colony, Torongallu, Ballari Dist.Pin Code: Ben aIu{Zl ’
583275, Karnataka g
.. . Behind KSFC Office Hubballi - P.B Road, Rayapur Brahmayya & Co,
Rajiv Lochana Dasa Hubballi Dharwad - 580009, Karnataka Bengaluru
C/o0 ISKCON, Arya Samaj Road, Brahmavva & Co
Karunya Sagar Dasa Mangaluru Krishna Kasturi, Balamatta, Ben aluﬁlj ’
Mangaluru - 575003, Karnataka 8
Jai Chaitanya Dasa Mysuru 18th Cross, SY,No-31 Brahmayya & Co,

Jayanagar, Mysuru - 570014, Karnataka

Bengaluru
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Central Office

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
No.72, 3Floor, 3rd Main,

Hyderabad Regional Office

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Plot #2, Kesari Nilayam,

Mumbai Regional Office

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
418, 4" floor, Dheeraj Heritage,

Gurgaon Regional Office

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Office No 421, Galleria Complex,

1st & 2nd Stage, Yeshwantpur Krishna Ngar Colony Picket, S.V. Road, Opp. to Milan Subway, DLF City IV,

Industrial Suburb, Rajajinagar, Secunderabad, Santacruzy West ' Gurgaon- 122001,
Ward No. 10 Hyderabad - 500015, Mumbai 4000’54 Haryana.

Bangalore - 560022 Telangana. umbat = ’ Phone: 0124 - 4276920
Karnataka Phone: 040 - 40031456 Maharashtra.

Toll Free No. 1800-425-8622
Paytm No. 7026570265

http://www.akshayapatra.org/office-addresses
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""" AKSHAYA PATRA LEADERSHIP

MISSIONARY VOLUNTEERS

TEAM

Chanchalapathi Dasa

Jai Chaitanya Dasa

Stoka Krishna Dasa
Bharatarshabha Dasa
Amitasana Dasa

Sridham Krishna Dasa
Rajiv Lochana Dasa

Satya Gaura Chandra Dasa
Vyomapada Dasa
Ratnangada Govinda Dasa
Suvyakta Narasimha Dasa
Karunya Sagar Dasa
Achyutha Krishna Dasa
JaganMohan Krishna Dasa
Maha Vishnu Dasa
Niskinchana Bhakta Dasa

Janardhana Dasa

PROFESSIONAL
TEAM

Shridhar Venkat, CEO

Ganesh R, CFO

Sundeep Talwar, CMO

Ajay Madan, Director- Operations

Ajay, Director- Advocacy & Research

Jagranjan Mishra, Director- Operations

Muralidhar Pundla, Director - Quality, Cl & Engineering
Mathan Varkey, Director - Corporate Partnerships
Saanil K Bhaskaran, Director - Enterprise Services
Vijay Kumar, Director- IT

Vinay N Kumar, Director - Operations
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ILLUMINE

A WORLD WHERE €VERY CHILD SITULES

Sponsor for printing this Annual Report

“rc infinity foundation






